Public Document Pack

MEETING
OF THE COUNCIL

Thursday, 10th February, 2022

7.00 pm
Council Chamber
Thanet District Council
Margate

www.thanet.gov.uk
01843 577000

We may be able to provide this document in
a different format such as Braille, audio or
large print, or in another language. Please
call 01843 577165 for details.

Page 1

Date:
Ask For:
Direct Dial:
Email:

31 January 2022
James Clapson
(01843) 577200
james.clapson@thanet.gov.uk

You are hereby summoned to attend the meeting of the Thanet District Council to be held
in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent on Thursday, 10
February 2022 at 7.00 pm for the purpose of transacting the business mentioned below.

Director of Corporate Governance
To: The Members of Thanet District Council
FIRE ALARM PROCEDURES: If the fire alarm is activated, please vacate the offices via
the stairs either through the security door to the left of the Chairman or opposite the lifts in
the foyer. Please do not use the lifts. Please assemble in Hawley Square on the green.
Officers will assist you and advise when it is deemed safe to return to the Chamber.
AGENDA
Item
No

1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

ANNOUNCEMENTS
To receive any announcements from the Chairman, Leader, Members of the Cabinet
or Chief Executive in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 2.2 (iv).

3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Pages 3 - 4)
To receive any declarations of interest. Members are advised to consider the advice
contained within the Declaration of Interest advice attached to this Agenda. If a
Member declares an interest, they should complete the Declaration of Interest Form

4.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT, MINIMUM REVENUE
PROVISION POLICY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY
FOR 2022-23 (Pages 5 - 50)

5.

HRA BUDGET 2022-23 (Pages 51 - 66)

6.

BUDGET 2022-23 AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2022-26 (Pages
67 - 110)

-2-

Page 2

Agenda Item 3

Do I have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and if so what action should I take?
Your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) are those interests that are, or should be, listed on your
Register of Interest Form.
If you are at a meeting and the subject relating to one of your DPIs is to be discussed, in so far as you
are aware of the DPI, you must declare the existence and explain the nature of the DPI during the
declarations of interest agenda item, at the commencement of the item under discussion, or when the
interest has become apparent
Once you have declared that you have a DPI (unless you have been granted a dispensation by the
Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer, for which you will have applied to the Monitoring
Officer prior to the meeting) you must:1.
2.
3.

Not speak or vote on the matter;
Withdraw from the meeting room during the consideration of the matter;
Not seek to improperly influence the decision on the matter.

Do I have a significant interest and if so what action should I take?
A significant interest is an interest (other than a DPI or an interest in an Authority Function) which:
1.
2.

Affects the financial position of yourself and/or an associated person; or
Relates to the determination of your application for any approval, consent, licence, permission or
registration made by, or on your behalf of, you and/or an associated person;
And which, in either case, a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would
reasonably regard as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the public
interest.

An associated person is defined as:
● A family member or any other person with whom you have a close association, including your
spouse, civil partner, or somebody with whom you are living as a husband or wife, or as if you are
civil partners; or
● Any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are a
partner, or any company of which they are directors; or
● Any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;
● Any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are
appointed or nominated by the Authority; or
● any body in respect of which you are in a position of general control or management and which:
- exercises functions of a public nature; or
- is directed to charitable purposes; or
- has as its principal purpose or one of its principal purposes the influence of public opinion or
policy (including any political party or trade union)

Page 3

Agenda Item 3
An Authority Function is defined as: ● Housing - where you are a tenant of the Council provided that those functions do not relate
particularly to your tenancy or lease; or
● Any allowance, payment or indemnity given to members of the Council;
● Any ceremonial honour given to members of the Council
● Setting the Council Tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance Act 1992
If you are at a meeting and you think that you have a significant interest then you must declare the
existence and nature of the significant interest at the commencement of the matter, or when the
interest has become apparent, or the declarations of interest agenda item.
Once you have declared that you have a significant interest (unless you have been granted a
dispensation by the Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer, for which you will have applied to
the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting) you must:1.

2.
3.



Not speak or vote (unless the public have speaking rights, or you are present to make
representations, answer questions or to give evidence relating to the business being discussed in
which case you can speak only)
Withdraw from the meeting during consideration of the matter or immediately after speaking.
Not seek to improperly influence the decision.

Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality
Councillors must declare at meetings any gift, benefit or hospitality with an estimated value (or
cumulative value if a series of gifts etc.) of £25 or more. You must, at the commencement of the
meeting or when the interest becomes apparent, disclose the existence and nature of the gift, benefit or
hospitality, the identity of the donor and how the business under consideration relates to that person or
body. However you can stay in the meeting unless it constitutes a significant interest, in which case it
should be declared as outlined above.

What if I am unsure?
If you are in any doubt, Members are strongly advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or
the Committee Services Manager well in advance of the meeting.

If you need to declare an interest then please complete the declaration of interest form.

Page 4

Agenda Item 4
Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum
Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual
Investment Strategy for 2022-23
Council

10 February 2022

Report Author

Chris Blundell, Director of Finance and Acting
Section 151 Officer

Portfolio Holder

Councillor David Saunders, Cabinet Member for
Finance

Status

For Decision

Classification

Unrestricted

Previously Considered by

Governance and Audit Committee (1 Dec 2021)
Cabinet (13 Jan 2022)

Ward

Thanet Wide

Executive Summary:
This report and annexes includes the proposed Treasury Management Strategy Statement,
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement, Annual Investment Strategy, Capital Strategy
and Non-Treasury Investments Report (TMSS) for 2022-23.
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) defines treasury
management as:
“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its banking,
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated
with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.”
The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and scrutiny of
treasury management policy and activities. This report is, therefore, important in that
respect, as it provides:
●
●

●

●

the capital plans (including prudential indicators);
a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy (how residual capital expenditure is
charged to revenue over time);
the treasury management strategy (how the investments and borrowings are to be
organised) including treasury indicators; and
an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be managed).

Key reporting items to consider include:

Page 5

Agenda Item 4
2

●

capital expenditure of £73.497m forecast over the next three years (2022-23 to
2024-25 inclusive), requiring borrowing of £11.275m.

●

No change to the Minimum Revenue Provision policy (policy for paying off the
accumulated borrowing requirement).

●

This report is in-line with the amendment as per the Treasury Management and Annual
Investment Strategy Mid Year 2021-22 Review to reflect the further deferral of
International Financial Reporting Standard 16 (IFRS16) on lease accounting to April
2022.; that the 2021-22 Operational Boundary for other long term liabilities is reduced
from £35m to £10m and the 2021-22 Authorised Limit for other long term liabilities is
reduced from £45m to £15m.

Recommendation(s):
That council approves this report and annexes, including each of the key elements listed
below.
a. The Capital Plans, Prudential Indicators and Limits for 2022-23 to 2024-25,
including the Authorised Limit Prudential Indicator;
b. The Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy;
c. The Treasury Management Strategy for 2022-23 to 2024-25 and the Treasury
Indicators;
d. The Investment Strategy for 2022-23 contained in the Treasury Management
Strategy, including the detailed criteria;
e. The Capital Strategy for 2022-23;
f. The Non-Treasury Investments Report for 2022-23.
Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
The financial implications are highlighted in this report.
Legal
Section 151 of the 1972 Local Government Act requires a suitably qualified named officer to
keep control of the council’s finances. For this council, this is the Director of Finance, and this
report is helping to carry out that function.

Corporate
Failure to undertake this process will impact on the council’s compliance with the Treasury
Management Code of Practice.

Equalities Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty

Page 6

Agenda Item 4
3

There are no equity and equalities implications arising directly from this report, but the
council needs to retain a strong focus and understanding on issues of diversity amongst the
local community and ensure service delivery matches these.
It is important to be aware of the council’s responsibility under the Public Sector Equality
Duty (PSED) and show evidence that due consideration had been given to the equalities
impact that may be brought upon communities by the decisions made by council.
CORPORATE PRIORITIES
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: ● Growth
● Environment
● Communities.
1

INTRODUCTION

1.1

Background
The council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash
raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management
operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being
available when it is needed. Surplus monies are invested in low risk counterparties or
instruments commensurate with the council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate
liquidity initially before considering investment return.
The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the
council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of
the council, essentially the longer-term cash flow planning, to ensure that the council
can meet its capital spending obligations. This management of longer-term cash may
involve arranging long or short-term loans, or using longer-term cash flow surpluses.
On occasion, when it is prudent and economic, any debt previously drawn may be
restructured to meet council risk or cost objectives.
The contribution the treasury management function makes to the authority is critical, as
the balance of debt and investment operations ensure liquidity or the ability to meet
spending commitments as they fall due, either on day-to-day revenue or for larger
capital projects. The treasury operations will see a balance of the interest costs of debt
and the investment income arising from cash deposits affecting the available budget.
Since cash balances generally result from reserves and balances, it is paramount to
ensure adequate security of the sums invested, as a loss of principal will in effect result
in a loss to the General Fund Balance.
Whilst any loans to third parties will impact on the treasury function, these activities are
generally classed as non-treasury activities (arising usually from capital expenditure)
and are separate from the day to day treasury management activities.
CIPFA defines treasury management as:
“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its

Page 7

Agenda Item 4
4

banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance
consistent with those risks.”
1.2

Reporting requirements

1.2.1 Capital Strategy
The CIPFA 2017 Prudential and Treasury Management Codes require all local
authorities to prepare reports which will provide the following:
● a high-level long term overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and
treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services.
● an overview of how the associated risk is managed.
● the implications for future financial sustainability.

The aim of this is to ensure:
● that all elected members of the council fully understand the overall long-term policy
objectives and resulting capital strategy requirements, governance procedures and
risk appetite.
● the separation of treasury management and policy investments. The CIPFA
definition of treasury management is given in section 1.1 and the key priorities are
firstly security, secondly portfolio liquidity, and thirdly yield/return (in that order).
Policy investments are typically projects relating to expenditure on fixed assets
(such as land and buildings) for service purposes, and would be included on the
capital programme.
For this council, these additional reports are the Capital Strategy (see Annex 4) and the
Non-Treasury Investments Report (see Annex 5).
1.2.2 Treasury Management reporting
The council is currently required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main
treasury reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and
actuals.
a. Prudential and treasury indicators and treasury strategy (this report) - The first,
and most important report is forward looking and covers:
● the capital plans (including prudential indicators);
● a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy (how residual capital expenditure is
charged to revenue over time);
● the treasury management strategy (how the investments and borrowings are to be
organised) including treasury indicators; and
● an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be managed).

Page 8

Agenda Item 4
5

b. A mid-year treasury management report – This is primarily a progress report and will
update members on the capital position, amending prudential indicators as necessary,
and whether any policies require revision.
c. An annual treasury report – This is a backward looking review document and
provides details of a selection of actual prudential and treasury indicators and actual
treasury operations compared to the estimates within the strategy.
Scrutiny
The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being
recommended to the council. This role is undertaken by the Governance and Audit
Committee.
1.3

Treasury Management Strategy for 2022-23
The strategy for 2022-23 covers two main areas:

●
●

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Capital issues
the capital expenditure plans and the associated prudential indicators;
the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy.
Treasury management issues
the current treasury position;
treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the council;
prospects for interest rates;
the borrowing strategy;
policy on borrowing in advance of need;
debt rescheduling;
the investment strategy;
creditworthiness policy; and
policy on use of external service providers.
These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, DLUHC
Investment Guidance, DLUHC MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Prudential Code and the
CIPFA Treasury Management Code.

1.4

Training
The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that members with
responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury
management. This especially applies to members responsible for scrutiny. Training
was last undertaken by members on 31 October 2019 and further training will be
arranged as required.
The training needs of treasury management officers are periodically reviewed.

1.5

External service providers

Page 9

Agenda Item 4
6

The council uses Link Group, Treasury Solutions as its external treasury
management advisors.
The council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions remains
with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed
upon our external service providers.
It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury
management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources.
The council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which
their value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to
regular review.
The council uses the Institutional Cash Distributors (ICD) Portal to invest or redeem
trades in its Money Market and Bond Funds (MMBFs). The portal provides advanced
reporting tools so that the authority can assess its exposure to certain banks or
countries.
Most investments via the ICD portal are made via JP Morgan, who act as a clearing
house for ten of the thirteen MMBFs the council currently uses. The clearing house
allows the authority to make several investments in different MMBFs but only requires
one payment to the clearing house, therefore saving the authority costs in CHAPS
fees.
2

THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2022-23 – 2024-25
The council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management
activity. The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in prudential
indicators, which are designed to assist members’ overview and confirm capital
expenditure plans.

2.1

Capital expenditure and financing
This prudential indicator is a summary of the council’s capital expenditure plans, both
those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget cycle. Members are
asked to approve the capital expenditure forecasts:

Capital
expenditure
£m
General Fund
HRA
Total

2020-21
Actual
12.376
11.118
23.494

2021-22
Budget
23.210
7.838
31.048

2022-23
Budget
18.710
21.998
40.708

2023-24
Budget
10.146
5.065
15.211

2024-25
Budget
6.224
11.354
17.578

The table below summarises how these plans are being financed by capital or
revenue resources. Any shortfall of resources results in a funding borrowing need.

Page 10

Agenda Item 4
7

Financing of
capital
expenditure
£m
Capital receipts GF
Capital receipts HRA
Grants and other
contributions- GF
Grants and other
contributions - HRA
Reserves - GF
Reserves - HRA
Revenue - GF
Revenue - HRA
Net financing need
for the year

2020-21
Actual

2021-22
Budget

2022-23
Budget

2023-24
Budget

2024-25
Budget

1.692

5.515

0.661

0.314

0.314

1.567

0.625

1.244

0.330

0.030

8.378

11.372

16.934

8.756

5.060

0.240

0.343

0.000

0.000

2.940

0.696
4.692
0.000
0.343
5.886

2.646
6.045
0.073
0.300
4.129

0.020
18.460
0.000
0.300
3.089

0.000
3.035
0.000
0.300
2.476

0.000
3.224
0.000
0.300
5.710

Other long term liabilities: The above financing need excludes other long term
liabilities, such as PFI and leasing arrangements which already include borrowing
instruments.
It was announced on 27 October 2021 that both Ramsgate and Margate have been
successful in their bids to the Levelling Up Fund.The bids for Ramsgate and Margate
were £19.8m and £6.3m respectively, and both bids have been awarded the full
funding amount. This report (including the above tables) excludes these bids, pending
further project plan development.
2.2

The council’s borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement)
The second prudential indicator is the council’s Capital Financing Requirement
(CFR). The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure (on
buildings, vehicles etc) which has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital
resources. It is essentially a measure of the council’s indebtedness and so its
underlying borrowing need. It can also be helpful to compare it to the outstanding
balance that is still payable on a loan or a mortgage, in this case we are considering
how much of the council’s debt still needs to be paid for. Any capital expenditure
above, which has not immediately been paid for, will increase the CFR.
The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) is a
statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the indebtedness in line with
each asset’s life, and so charges the economic consumption of capital assets as they
are used.
The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. PFI schemes, finance leases).
Whilst these increase the CFR, and therefore the council’s borrowing requirement,
these types of scheme include a borrowing facility from the provider and so the

Page 11

Agenda Item 4
8

council is not required to separately borrow for these schemes. The council had
£1.509m of long term liabilities (excluding pensions) as at 31 March 2021.
The council is asked to approve the CFR projections below:
£m

2020-21
Actual
Capital Financing Requirement
CFR – General Fund
28.449
CFR – HRA
28.236
Total CFR
56.685
Movement in CFR
2.063

Net financing need for the
year (above)
Less loan / liability
repayments
Less MRP/VRP and other
financing movements*
Movement in CFR

2021-22
Estimate

2022-23
Estimate

2023-24
Estimate

2024-25
Estimate

26.039
28.511
54.550
(2.135)

37.743
30.220
67.963
13.413

37.390
31.318
68.708
0.745

36.698
35.865
72.563
3.855

5.886

4.129

3.089

2.476

5.710

(2.249)

(4.688)

-

-

-

(1.574)

(1.576)

10.324

(1.731)

(1.855)

2.063

(2.135)

13.413

0.745

3.855

*2022-23 includes an estimate for the recognition of leases under International
Financial Reporting Standard 16 (IFRS 16).
The Fixed Asset Analysis chart below shows that, using the council’s draft accounts
as at 31 March 2021, 20% of the council’s capital / long-term assets had yet to be
funded (CFR) and 33% had effectively been paid off or funded (Capital Adjustment
Account). The remaining 47% represented the aggregate increase in value of these
assets since acquisition by the council.

Fixed Asset Analysis

£m

%

Capital Financing Requirement

57

20

Capital Adjustment Account

93

33

Revaluation Reserve

135

47

Other Adjustments

1

0

Fixed Assets (total of above)

286

100

Page 12

Agenda Item 4
9

2.3

Core funds and expected investment balances
The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance capital
expenditure or other budget decisions to support the revenue budget will have an
ongoing impact on investments unless resources are supplemented each year from
new sources (asset sales etc.). Detailed below are estimates of the year end
balances for each resource and anticipated day to day cash flow balances.
Year End Resources
£m
Fund balances / reserves
Capital receipts
Earmarked reserves
Total core funds
Balances incl working capital*
(Under)/over borrowing
Expected investments

2020-21
Actual
25.228
6.316
24.751
56.295
5.812
(30.782)
31.325

2021-22
Estimate
18.679
5.016
12.337
36.032
12.894
(18.926)
30.000

2022-23
Estimate
18.679
5.016
12.337
36.032
5.158
(6.190)
35.000

2023-24
Estimate
18.679
5.016
12.337
36.032
4.661
(5.693)
35.000

2024-25
Estimate
18.679
5.016
12.337
36.032
3.772
(4.804)
35.000

A major factor in the reduction of core funds after 2020-21 is the utilisation of Covid
reserves. For example, the 2020-21 reserves include £9.553m for Covid
Non-Domestic Rates Relief Losses (S31 grants).
*Working capital balances shown are estimated year end; these may be different
mid-year.
2.4

Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement

Page 13

Agenda Item 4
10

The council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General Fund capital
spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the minimum revenue
provision - MRP), although it is also allowed to undertake additional voluntary
payments if required (voluntary revenue provision - VRP).
DLUHC regulations have been issued which require the full council to approve an
MRP Statement in advance of each year. A variety of options are provided to
councils, so long as there is a prudent provision. The council is recommended to
approve the following MRP Statement:
For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 or which in the future will be
Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy will be:
●

Existing practice - MRP will follow the existing practice outlined in former
DLUHC regulations (option 1).

This option provides for an approximate 4% reduction in the borrowing need (CFR)
each year.
From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing (including PFI and finance leases)
the MRP policy will be:
●

Asset life method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the assets, in
accordance with the regulations (this option must be applied for any expenditure
capitalised under a Capitalisation Direction) (option 3);

This option provides for a reduction in the borrowing need over approximately the
asset’s life.
There is no requirement on the HRA to make a minimum revenue provision but there
is a requirement for a charge for depreciation to be made.
Repayments included in annual PFI or finance leases are applied as MRP.
MRP Overpayments - A change introduced by the revised DLUHC MRP Guidance
was the allowance that any charges made over the statutory minimum MRP, VRP or
overpayments, can, if needed, be reclaimed in later years if deemed necessary or
prudent. In order for these sums to be reclaimed for use in the budget, this policy
must disclose any cumulative overpayment made each year.
3

BORROWING
The capital expenditure plans set out in Section 2 provide details of the service
activity of the council. The treasury management function ensures that the council’s
cash is organised in accordance with the relevant professional codes, so that
sufficient cash is available to meet this service activity and the council’s capital
strategy. This will involve both the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital
plans require, the organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities. The strategy
covers the relevant treasury / prudential indicators, the current and projected debt
positions and the annual investment strategy.

3.1

Current portfolio position
The overall treasury management portfolio as at 31 March 2021, and the position as
at 30 September 2021, are shown below for both borrowing and investments.

Page 14

Agenda Item 4
11

TREASURY PORTFOLIO

Treasury Investments
Banks
Money Market Funds
Total (all managed in-house)
Treasury External Borrowing
PWLB
LOBOs
Salix
Total
Net treasury investments /
(borrowing)

Actual 31
March
2021
£m
11.383
19.942
31.325

Actual 31
March
2021
%
36.34
63.66
100.00

Actual 30
Sept 2021

Actual 30
Sept 2021

£m
4.894
49.257
54.151

%

19.881
4.500
0.013
24.394
6.931

81.50
18.45
0.05
100.00

15.876
4.500
0.009
20.385
33.766

77.88
22.08
0.04
100.00

9.04
90.96
100.00

The Council’s forward projections for borrowing are summarised below. The table
shows the actual external debt against the underlying capital borrowing need (the
Capital Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under borrowing.

£m
External Debt
Debt at 1 April
Expected change in
Debt
Other long-term
liabilities (OLTL)
at 1 April
Expected change in
OLTL*
Gross debt at 31
March
The Capital Financing
Requirement*
Under / (over)
borrowing

2020-21
Actual

2021-22
Estimate

2022-23
Estimate

2023-24
Estimate

2024-25
Estimate

25.025
(0.631)

24.394
10.061

34.455
14.489

48.944
1.441

50.385
4.745

1.904

1.509

1.169

12.829

12.630

(0.395)

(0.340)

11.660

(0.199)

(0.001)

25.903

35.624

61.773

63.015

67.759

56.685

54.550

67.963

68.708

72.563

30.782

18.926

6.190

5.693

4.804

*2022-23 includes an estimate for the recognition of leases under International
Financial Reporting Standard 16 (IFRS 16).
Within the range of prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to
ensure that the council operates its activities within well defined limits. One of these
is that the council needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the short
term, exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any
additional CFR for 2022-23 and the following two financial years. This allows some

Page 15

Agenda Item 4
12

flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years, but ensures that borrowing is not
undertaken for revenue or speculative purposes.
The Section 151 Officer reports that the council complied with this prudential indicator
in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future. This view takes
into account current commitments, existing plans, and the proposals in this budget
report.
3.2

Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity
The operational boundary. This is the limit beyond which external debt is not
normally expected to exceed. In most cases, this would be a similar figure to the
CFR, but may be lower or higher depending on the levels of actual debt and the
ability to fund under-borrowing by other cash resources.
Operational boundary
£m
Debt
Other long term liabilities
(incl leases)
Total

2021-22
Estimate
76.000
10.000

2022-23
Estimate
76.000
35.000

2023-24
Estimate
76.000
35.000

2024-25
Estimate
80.000
35.000

86.000

111.000

111.000

115.000

The authorised limit for external debt. This is a key prudential indicator and
represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing. This represents a legal limit
beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or revised by
the full council. It reflects the level of external debt which, while not desired, could be
afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.
1.

This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local
Government Act 2003. The Government retains an option to control either
the total of all councils’ plans, or those of a specific council, although this
power has not yet been exercised.

2.

The council is asked to approve the following authorised limit:

Authorised limit £m
Debt
Other long term liabilities
(incl leases)
Total

2021-22
Estimate
81.000
15.000

2022-23
Estimate
81.000
45.000

2023-24
Estimate
81.000
45.000

2024-25
Estimate
85.000
45.000

96.000

126.000

126.000

130.000

Composition of Operational Boundary and Authorised Limit
Debt (in both the Operational Boundary and Authorised Limit above) for 2021-22
onwards includes:
a)

A £4m uplift for capital expenditure being incurred in advance of generating
capital receipts to fund this expenditure although, for clarity, any such
expenditure is not limited to £4m. As this is anticipated to be a relatively

Page 16

Agenda Item 4
13

short-term timing difference it has not been reflected elsewhere in this report.
Potential examples of such projects include Office Accommodation and Public
Toilet Refurbishment.
b)

a £5m uplift to provide additional capacity for any non-treasury investments that
the council may pursue. For clarity, any such investments are not limited to £5m
and are in addition to any such amounts already included within the capital and
treasury estimates. This has not been reflected elsewhere in this report,
pending the formulation and approval of any such items.

Other long term liabilities (in both the Operational Boundary and Authorised Limit
above) includes an estimate for the recognition of leases under International
Financial Reporting Standard 16 (IFRS 16) from April 2022. Once full details are
known, the Operational Boundary and/or Authorised Limit may need to be revised for
approval.
3.3

Link’s economic and interest rate forecast (issued by Link on 10 Nov 2021)
The council has appointed Link Group as its treasury advisor and part of their service
is to assist the council to formulate a view on interest rates. Link provided the
following forecasts on 8th November 2021. These are forecasts for certainty rates, gilt
yields plus 80 bps.

Additional notes by Link on this forecast table: ●

LIBOR and LIBID rates will cease from the end of 2021. Work is currently
progressing to replace LIBOR with a rate based on SONIA (Sterling Overnight
Index Average). In the meantime, Link’s forecasts are based on expected
average earnings by local authorities for 3 to 12 months.

●

Link’s forecasts for average earnings are averages i.e., rates offered by individual
banks may differ significantly from these averages, reflecting their different needs
for borrowing short term cash at any one point in time.

The coronavirus outbreak has done huge economic damage to the UK and to
economies around the world. After the Bank of England took emergency action in

Page 17

Agenda Item 4
14

March 2020 to cut Bank Rate to 0.10%, it left Bank Rate unchanged at its subsequent
meetings.
As shown in the forecast table above, Link’s forecast for Bank Rate now includes five
increases, one in December 2021 to 0.25%, then quarter 2 of 2022 to 0.50%, quarter
1 of 2023 to 0.75%, quarter 1 of 2024 to 1.00% and, finally, one in quarter 1 of 2025
to 1.25%.
Further details are provided in annex 6.
3.4

Borrowing strategy
The council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position. This means that the
capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement) has not been fully funded
with loan debt as cash supporting the council’s reserves, balances and cash flow has
been used as a temporary measure. This strategy is prudent as investment returns
are low and counterparty risk is still an issue that needs to be considered.
Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be
adopted with the 2022-23 treasury operations. The Section 151 Officer will monitor
interest rates in financial markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to changing
circumstances:
●

if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in borrowing rates,
then borrowing will be postponed.

●

if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in borrowing
rates than those currently forecast, perhaps arising from an acceleration in the
rate of increase in central rates in the USA and UK, an increase in world
economic activity or a sudden increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio
position will be re-appraised. Most likely, fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst
interest rates are lower than they are projected to be in the next few years.

Any decisions will be reported to the appropriate decision making body at the next
available opportunity.
3.5

Policy on borrowing in advance of need
The council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in
advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates,
and will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be demonstrated
and that the council can ensure the security of such funds.
Borrowing in advance will be made within the constraints that:
●

The authority would not look to borrow more than 18 months in advance of
need.

Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior
appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting
mechanism.

Page 18

Agenda Item 4
15

3.6

Debt rescheduling
Rescheduling of current borrowing in our debt portfolio is unlikely to occur as there is
still a very large difference between premature redemption rates and new borrowing
rates, even though the general margin of PWLB rates over gilt yields was reduced by
100 bps in November 2020.
If rescheduling were done, it will be reported to Cabinet at the earliest meeting
following its action.

3.7

New financial institutions as a source of borrowing and / or types of borrowing
Currently the PWLB Certainty Rate is set at gilts + 80 basis points for both HRA and
non-HRA borrowing. However, consideration may still need to be given to sourcing
funding from the following sources:
●
●
●
●

3.8

Local authorities (primarily shorter dated maturities)
Financial institutions (primarily insurance companies and pension funds but also
some banks, including forward dates)
Municipal Bonds Agency
Other sources of government funding (such as the UK Infrastructure Bank and
Salix Finance for example).

Approved Sources of Long and Short term Borrowing
The council may make use of borrowing from internal sources, PWLB, local
authorities, financial institutions, the Municipal Bonds Agency, and/or other sources of
government funding as and when appropriate.

4

ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY

4.1

Investment policy - management of risk
The Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC - this was
formerly the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)) and
CIPFA have extended the meaning of ‘investments’ to include both financial and
non-financial investments. This report deals solely with treasury (financial)
investments (as managed by the treasury management team). Non-financial
investments are covered in the Capital Strategy and Non-Treasury Investments
Report (separate annexed reports).
The Council’s investment policy has regard to the following: ● DLUHC’s Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”)
● CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross
Sectoral Guidance Notes 2017 (“the Code”)
● CIPFA Treasury Management Guidance Notes 2018
The Council’s investment priorities will be security first, portfolio liquidity second and
then yield (return).

Page 19

Agenda Item 4
16

The above guidance from the DLUHC and CIPFA place a high priority on the
management of risk. This authority has adopted a prudent approach to managing risk
and defines its risk appetite by the following means: 1. Minimum acceptable credit criteria are applied in order to generate a list of
highly creditworthy counterparties. This also enables diversification and thus
avoidance of concentration risk. The key ratings used to monitor counterparties
are the short term and long-term ratings.
2. Other information: ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an
institution; it is important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector on
both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and political
environments in which institutions operate. The assessment will also take
account of information that reflects the opinion of the markets. To achieve this
consideration the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a monitor on
market pricing such as “credit default swaps” and overlay that information on
top of the credit ratings.
3. Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and
other such information pertaining to the financial sector in order to establish the
most robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential investment
counterparties.
4. This authority has defined the list of types of investment instruments that the
treasury management team are authorised to use. There are two lists in annex 2
under the categories of ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments.
●

Specified investments are those with a high level of credit quality and subject to
a maturity limit of one year (or have less than a year left to run to maturity if
originally they were classified as being non-specified investments solely due to
the maturity period exceeding one year).

●

Non-specified investments are those with less high credit quality, may be for
periods in excess of one year, and/or are more complex instruments which
require greater consideration by members and officers before being authorised
for use.

5. Non-specified investments limit. The Council has determined that it will limit
the maximum total exposure to non-specified investments at £5m (see
paragraphs 4.2, 4.3 and 4.4).
6. Lending limits (amounts and maturity) for each counterparty will be set through
applying the matrix table in paragraph 4.2.
7. This authority will set a limit for the amount of its investments which are invested
for maturities longer than 365 days, (see paragraphs 4.2 and 4.4).
8. Investments will only be placed with counterparties from foreign countries which
have a specified minimum sovereign rating, (see paragraph 4.3). This does not
apply to pooled investment vehicles.

Page 20

Agenda Item 4
17

9. This authority has engaged external consultants, (see paragraph 1.5) to
provide expert advice on how to optimise an appropriate balance of security,
liquidity and yield, given the risk appetite of this authority in the context of the
expected level of cash balances and need for liquidity throughout the year.
10. All investments will be denominated in sterling.
11. As a result of the change in accounting standards under IFRS 9, this authority will
consider the implications of investment instruments which could result in an
adverse movement in the value of the amount invested and resultant charges at
the end of the year to the General Fund. In November 2018, The Ministry of
Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) concluded a
consultation for a temporary override to allow English local authorities time to
adjust their portfolio of investments by announcing a statutory override to delay
implementation of IFRS 9 for five years ending 31 March 2023.
However, this authority will also pursue value for money in treasury management
and will monitor the yield from investment income against appropriate benchmarks
for investment performance (see paragraph 4.5). Regular monitoring of investment
performance will be carried out during the year.
Changes in risk management policy from last year.
The above criteria are unchanged from last year.
4.2

Creditworthiness policy
The primary principle governing the council’s investment criteria is the security of its
investments, although the yield or return on the investment is also a key
consideration. After this main principle, the council will ensure that:
●

It maintains a policy covering both the categories of investment types it will
invest in, criteria for choosing investment counterparties with adequate
security, and monitoring their security. This is set out in the specified and
non-specified investment sections below; and

●

It has sufficient liquidity in its investments. For this purpose it will set out
procedures for determining the maximum periods for which funds may
prudently be committed. These procedures also apply to the council’s
prudential indicators covering the maximum principal sums invested.

The Section 151 Officer will maintain a counterparty list in compliance with the
following criteria and will revise the criteria and submit them to council for approval
as necessary. These criteria are separate to that which determines which types of
investment instrument are either specified or non-specified as it provides an overall
pool of counterparties considered high quality which the council may use, rather
than defining what types of investment instruments are to be used.
Credit rating information is supplied by the Link Group, our treasury advisors, on all
active counterparties that comply with the criteria below. Any counterparty failing to
meet the criteria would be omitted from the counterparty (dealing) list. Any rating
changes, rating watches (notification of a likely change), rating outlooks (notification
of the longer term bias outside the central rating view) are provided to officers
almost immediately after they occur and this information is considered before
dealing. For instance, a negative rating watch applying to a counterparty at the

Page 21

Agenda Item 4
18

minimum council criteria may be suspended from use, with all others being reviewed
in light of market conditions.
The criteria for providing a pool of high quality investment counterparties (both
specified and non-specified investments) is:
●

Banks 1 - good credit quality – the council will only use banks which:
i. are UK banks; and/or
ii. are non-UK and domiciled in a country which has a minimum sovereign
long term rating of AAand have, as a minimum, the following credit rating from at least one of Fitch,
Moody’s and Standard and Poors (where rated):
i. Short term – F1

(or equivalent)

ii. Long term – A-(or equivalent)
●

Banks 2 – Part nationalised UK bank – Royal Bank of Scotland Group
ring-fenced operations. This bank can be included provided it continues to be
part nationalised or it meets the above criteria.

●

Banks 3 – The council’s own banker for transactional purposes if the bank
falls below the above criteria, although in this case balances will be
minimised in both monetary size and time invested.

●

Bank subsidiary and treasury operations: If separately rated, the council will
use those that meet the ratings/criteria for banks outlined above. If not
separately rated, the council will use these where the parent bank has the
necessary ratings/criteria outlined above.

●

Building societies: The council will use all societies which meet the
ratings/criteria for banks outlined above.

●

Money market funds, enhanced money market funds, bond funds – AAA

●

UK Government (including gilts, treasury bills and the DMADF)

●

Local authorities, parish councils, community councils, companies controlled
by the council (either alone or with other public sector organisations) etc

●

Housing associations

●

Supranational institutions

●

Multi-asset funds

A limit of £5m will be applied to the use of non-specified investments.
Use of additional information other than credit ratings. Additional requirements
under the Code require the council to supplement credit rating information. Whilst
the above criteria relies primarily on the application of credit ratings to provide a pool
of appropriate counterparties for officers to use, additional operational market
information will be applied before making any specific investment decision from the
agreed pool of counterparties. This additional market information (for example
Credit Default Swaps, rating watches/outlooks) will be applied to compare the
relative security of differing investment counterparties.

Page 22

Agenda Item 4
19

Time and monetary limits applying to investments. The time and monetary limits
for institutions on the council’s counterparty list are as follows (these will cover both
specified and non-specified investments):
Fitch Long Term
Rating

Money

Time

Limit

Limit
(settlement
period)

(or equivalent)*
Level 1

AA-

£6m per
institution

370 days

Level 2

A

£5m per
institution

370 days

Level 3

A-

£4m per
institution

185 days

N/A

£7m per
institution

370 days

UK sovereign
rating

unlimited

6 months

Money market funds, enhanced
money market funds, bond funds

AAA

£6m per
fund

370 days

Local authorities, parish councils,
community councils, companies
controlled by the council (either alone
or with other public sector
organisations), housing associations,
supranational institutions etc

N/A

£4m per
institution

5 years

Multi-asset funds

N/A

£5m per
fund

370 days

Part nationalised
Debt Management Account Deposit
Facility

*The institution must have this minimum credit rating from at least one of Fitch,
Moody’s, and Standard and Poors (where rated).
The proposed criteria for specified and non-specified investments are shown in
Annex 2 for approval.
Creditworthiness
Significant levels of downgrades to short and long-term credit ratings have not
materialised since the crisis in March 2020. In the main, where they did change, any
alterations were limited to Outlooks. However, as economies are beginning to
reopen, there have been some instances of previous lowering of Outlooks being
reversed.
CDS prices
Although bank CDS prices (these are market indicators of credit risk) spiked
upwards at the end of March / early April 2020 due to the heightened market
uncertainty and ensuing liquidity crisis that affected financial markets, they have

Page 23

Agenda Item 4
20

returned to more average levels since then. However, sentiment can easily shift, so
it will remain important to undertake continual monitoring of all aspects of risk and
return in the current circumstances. Link monitors CDS prices as part of its
creditworthiness service to local authorities and the council has access to this
information via its Link-provided Passport portal.
4.3

Other limits
Due care will be taken to consider the exposure of the council’s total investment
portfolio to non-specified investments, countries, groups and sectors.
a)

Non-specified investment limit. The council has determined that it will limit
the maximum total exposure to non-specified investments at £5m.

b)

Country limit. The council has determined that it will only use approved
counterparties from the UK (irrespective of the UK sovereign credit rating) or
other countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA- from Fitch (or
equivalent). This list will be added to, or deducted from, by officers should
ratings change in accordance with this policy.

c)

Other limits. In addition:
●

no more than £5m will be placed with any non-UK country at any time
(this limit applies to each non-UK country individually and not to non-UK
countries in total);

●

limits in place above will apply to a group of companies;

●

secor limits will be monitored regularly for appropriateness.

The above restrictions do not apply to pooled investment vehicles (including
multi-asset funds (apart from the non-specified investment limit), money market
funds, enhanced money market funds and bond funds). The council only invests in
sterling denominated pooled investment vehicles.
4.4

Investment strategy
In-house funds: Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and
cash flow requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for
investments up to 12 months). Greater returns are usually obtainable by investing
for longer periods. While most cash balances are required in order to manage the
ups and downs of cash flow, where cash sums can be identified that could be
invested for longer periods, the value to be obtained from longer term investments
will be carefully assessed.
● If it is thought that Bank Rate is likely to rise significantly within the time horizon
being considered, then consideration will be given to keeping most investments
as being short term or variable.
● Conversely, if it is thought that Bank Rate is likely to fall within that time period,
consideration will be given to locking in higher rates currently obtainable, for
longer periods.
Link’s investment returns expectations (issued by Link on 10 November 2021):

Page 24

Agenda Item 4
21

Link’s current forecast, shown in section 3.3, includes a forecast for a first increase
in Bank Rate in December 2021 though there is a high risk that it could be delayed
until quarter 1 or 2 of 2022.
Link’s suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments
placed for periods up to about three months during each financial year are as
follows:
Average earnings in each year

Now

Previously

2022/23

0.50%

0.25%

2023/24

0.75%

0.50%

2024/25

1.00%

0.50%

2025/26

1.25%

1.00%

Long term later years

2.00%

2.00%

Investment treasury indicator and limit - total principal funds invested for
maturities greater than 365 days. These limits are set with regard to the council’s
liquidity requirements and to reduce the need for early sale of an investment, and
are based on the availability of funds after each year-end.
The council is asked to approve the following treasury indicator and limit: Upper limit for principal sums invested for maturities longer than 365
days
£m
2022-23
2023-24
2024-25
Principal sums invested for maturities
£5m
£5m
£5m
longer than 365 days
Investments as at 31 September 2021 invested for maturities longer than 365 days
were £nil.
For its cash flow generated balances, the council will seek to utilise its instant
access and notice accounts, pooled investment vehicles and term deposits in order
to benefit from the compounding of interest.

4.5

Investment performance / risk benchmarking
These benchmarks are simple guides to maximum risk, so they may be breached
from time to time, depending on movements in interest rates and counterparty
criteria. The purpose of the benchmarks is that officers will monitor the current and
trend position and amend the operational strategy to manage risk as conditions
change. Any breach of the benchmarks will be reported, with supporting reasons in
the mid-year or Annual Report.
Security - The council’s maximum security risk benchmark for the current portfolio,
when compared to historic default tables, is:

Page 25

Agenda Item 4
22

●

0.05% historic risk of default when compared to the whole portfolio (excluding
unrated investments).

Liquidity – in respect of this area the council seeks to maintain:

● Liquid short term deposits of at least £10m available with a week’s notice.
●

Weighted average life benchmark is expected to be in the range of 0 to 1 years,
with a maximum of 5 years.

Yield - local measures of yield benchmarks are:
●

Investments – internal returns above the 7 day SONIA compounded rate.

And in addition that the security benchmark for each individual year is (excluding
unrated investments):

Maximum

1 year
0.05%

2 years
0.05%

3 years
0.05%

4 years
0.05%

5 years
0.05%

Note: This benchmark is an average risk of default measure, and would not
constitute an expectation of loss against a particular investment.
4.6

End of year investment report
At the end of the financial year, the council will report on its investment activity as
part of its Annual Treasury Report.

4.7

Use of external fund managers
Except for pooled funds, it is the council’s policy not to use external fund managers
for any part of its investment portfolio.
The council may use pooled investment vehicles and fully appreciates the
importance of monitoring the activity and resultant performance of such
investments. In order to aid this assessment, the council is provided with a suite of
regular reporting from its providers.

4.8

Ethical investing
Although investment guidance, both statutory and from CIPFA, makes clear that all
investing must adopt the principles of security, liquidity and yield (in that order) the
council is committed to ethical high standards and declared a climate emergency on
1 July 2019; doing what is within its power to become carbon neutral by 2030 within
its estates and activities.
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) metrics are incorporated into the
credit rating agency assessments, which the council uses in its investment strategy.
Typical ESG considerations are shown below.
Environmental: Emissions and air quality, energy and waste management, waste
and hazardous material, exposure to environmental impact.

Page 26

Agenda Item 4
23

Social: Human rights, community relations, customer welfare, labour relations,
employee wellbeing, exposure to social impacts.
Governance: Management structure, governance structure, group structure,
financial transparency.
5

COMMERCIAL INVESTMENTS
The council's Non-Treasury Investments Report 2022-23 (Annex 5) has been
amended so that, for a new non-treasury investment in a new asset, the council may
only purchase property, make investments and/or make loans for service purposes
(i.e. not for purely/primarily commercial purposes, though it may still generate
revenue).
If a local authority is planning to acquire investment assets bought primarily for yield
then it is now unable to borrow from the PWLB to finance any expenditure in its
capital plan.

6

OPTIONS
That council:
a)

Approves this report and annexes, including each of the key elements listed
below.

•

The Capital Plans, Prudential Indicators and Limits for 2022-23 to 2024-25,
including the Authorised Limit Prudential Indicator.
The Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy.
The Treasury Management Strategy for 2022-23 to 2024-25 and the Treasury
Indicators.
The Investment Strategy for 2022-23 contained in the Treasury
Management Strategy, including the detailed criteria.
The Capital Strategy for 2022-23.
The Non-Treasury Investments Report for 2022-23.

•
•
•
•
•

b) Does not approve this report and annexes (advising the reason(s) why); thereby
not complying with the Treasury Management Code of Practice.
7

DISCLAIMER
This report (including its annexes) is a technical document focussing on public
sector investments and borrowings and, as such, readers should not use the
information contained within the report to inform personal investment or borrowing
decisions. Neither Thanet District Council nor any of its officers or employees makes
any representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy or
completeness of the information contained herein (such information being subject to
change without notice) and shall not be in any way responsible or liable for the
contents hereof and no reliance should be placed on the accuracy, fairness or
completeness of the information contained in this document. Any opinions, forecasts
or estimates herein constitute a judgement and there can be no assurance that they

Page 27

Agenda Item 4
24

will be consistent with future results or events. No person accepts any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from any use of this document or its
contents or otherwise in connection therewith.
Contact Officer: Chris Blundell, Director of Finance & Acting Section 151 Officer
Reporting to: Madeline Homer, Chief Executive
Annex List
Annex 1: The Capital Prudential and Treasury Indicators 2020-21 – 2024-25
Annex 2: Treasury Management Practice (TMP1) – Credit and Counterparty Risk
Management
Annex 3: Guidance on Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum
Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy
(TMSS)
Annex 4: Capital Strategy 2022-23
Annex 5: Non-Treasury Investments Report 2022-23
Annex 6: Link’s Economic and Interest Rate Forecast (issued by Link on 10
November 2021)
Corporate Consultation Undertaken
Finance: N/A
Legal: Estelle Culligan, Deputy Monitoring Officer

Page 28

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
ANNEX 1 - THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL AND TREASURY INDICATORS 2020-21 – 2024-25
The council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management activity. The
output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in the prudential indicators, which are
designed to assist members’ overview and confirm capital expenditure plans.
1.

Capital expenditure
Capital expenditure
£m
General Fund
HRA
Total

2.

2020-21
Actual
12.376
11.118
23.494

2021-22
Budget
23.210
7.838
31.048

2022-23
Budget
18.710
21.998
40.708

2023-24
Budget
10.146
5.065
15.211

2024-25
Budget
6.224
11.354
17.578

Affordability prudential indicators
The previous section covers the overall capital and control of borrowing prudential indicators
but, within this framework, prudential indicators are required to assess the affordability of the
capital investment plans. These provide an indication of the impact of the capital investment
plans on the council’s overall finances. The council is asked to approve the following indicators:

a.

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream
This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term obligation
costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream.
%

2020-202
1
Actual

2021-22
Estimate

2022-23
Estimate

2023-24
Estimate

2024-25
Estimate

General Fund
HRA

5.7
4.8

9.4
5.0

11.6
6.7

11.6
6.5

12.3
7.0

The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the proposals in this budget
report.
b.

HRA ratios
2020-21
Actual

2021-22
Estimate

2022-23
Estimate

2023-24
Estimate

2024-25
Estimate

HRA debt £m

15.899

19.199

30.138

31.317

35.956

HRA rents £m

13.244

13.519

14.253

14.606

15.024

Ratio of debt to
rents %

120.0

142.0

211.5

214.4

239.3

£

2020-21
Actual

2021-22
Estimate

2022-23
Estimate

2023-24
Estimate

2024-25
Estimate

HRA debt £m

15.899

19.199

30.138

31.317

35.956

Page 29

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
Number of HRA
dwellings
Debt per dwelling
£
3.

3,061

3,057

3,065

3,073

3,081

5,194

6,280

9,833

10,191

11,670

Maturity structure of borrowing
These gross limits are set to reduce the council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due
for refinancing, and are required for upper and lower limits.
The council is asked to approve the following treasury indicators and limits:
Maturity structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2021-22
Lower
Upper
Under 12 months
0%
50%
12 months to under 2 years
0%
50%
2 years to under 5 years
0%
50%
5 years to under 10 years
0%
50%
10 years to under 20 years
0%
50%
20 years to under 30 years
0%
50%
30 years to under 40 years
0%
50%
40 years to under 50 years
0%
50%
50 years and above
0%
50%
Maturity structure of variable interest rate borrowing 2021-22
Lower
Upper
Under 12 months
0%
50%
12 months to under 2 years
0%
50%
2 years to under 5 years
0%
50%
5 years to under 10 years
0%
50%
10 years to under 20 years
0%
50%
20 years to under 30 years
0%
50%
30 years to under 40 years
0%
50%
40 years to under 50 years
0%
50%
50 years and above
0%
50%

4.

Control of interest rate exposure
Please see paragraphs 3.3, 3.4 and 4.4 of the main report.

Page 30

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2
ANNEX 2 - TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICE (TMP1) – CREDIT AND
COUNTERPARTY RISK MANAGEMENT
The DLUHC issued Investment Guidance in 2018, and this forms the structure of the council’s
policy below. These guidelines do not apply to either trust funds or pension funds which operate
under a different regulatory regime.
The key intention of the Guidance is to maintain the current requirement for councils to invest
prudently, and that priority is given to security and liquidity before yield. In order to facilitate this
objective the guidance requires this council to have regard to the CIPFA publication Treasury
Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes.
This council adopts the Code and will apply its principles to all investment activity. In
accordance with the Code, the Section 151 Officer has produced its treasury management
practices (TMPs). This part, TMP 1(1), covering investment counterparty policy requires
approval each year.
Annual investment strategy
The key requirements of both the Code and the investment guidance are to set an annual
investment strategy, as part of the annual treasury strategy for the following year, covering the
identification and approval of the following:
●
●
●
●

The strategy guidelines for choosing and placing investments, particularly non-specified
investments.
The principles to be used to determine the maximum periods for which funds can be
committed.
Specified investments that the council will use. These are high security (i.e. high credit
rating, although this is defined by the council, and no guidelines are given), and high
liquidity investments in sterling and with a maturity of no more than a year.
Non-specified investments, clarifying the greater risk implications, identifying the general
types of investment that may be used and a limit to the overall amount of various
categories that can be held at any time.

The investment policy proposed for the council is:
Strategy guidelines – The main strategy guidelines are contained in the body of the treasury
strategy statement.
Specified investments - These investments are sterling investments of not more than
one-year maturity, or those which could be for a longer period but where the council has the
right to be repaid within 12 months if it wishes. They also include investments which were
originally classed as being non-specified investments, but which would have been classified as
specified investments apart from originally being for a period longer than 12 months, once the
remaining period to maturity falls to under 12 months.These are considered low risk assets
where the possibility of loss of principal or investment income is small. These would include
sterling investments which would not be defined as capital expenditure with:
1. The UK Government (such as the Debt Management Account deposit facility, UK treasury
bills or a gilt with less than one year to maturity).
2. Supranational bonds of less than one year’s duration.
3. Local authorities, housing associations, parish councils, community councils, companies
controlled by the council (either alone or with other public sector organisations) etc.
4. Money market funds, enhanced money market funds and bond funds that have been
awarded a high credit rating by a credit rating agency. This covers pooled investment

Page 31

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2
vehicles rated AAA by Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s and/or Fitch rating agencies (where
rated).
5. A body that is considered of a high credit quality (such as a bank or building society). This
covers bodies with a minimum short term rating of F1 (or the equivalent) and minimum long
term rating of A- (or the equivalent) as rated by at least one of Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s
and/or Fitch rating agencies (where rated).
6. Any part nationalised UK bank or building society.
7. Any subsidiary and treasury operations that meet the above criteria or, if not separately
rated, where the parent bank or building society has the necessary ratings outlined above.
8. The council’s own banker for transactional purposes if the bank falls below the above
criteria, although in this case balances will be minimised in both monetary size and time
invested.
Within these bodies, and in accordance with the Code, the council has set additional criteria to
set the time and amount of monies which will be invested in these bodies, as set out in the
council’s annual investment strategy.
Non-specified investments
Non-specified investments are any other type of investment (i.e. not defined as specified
above). The council may only use the following non-specified investments:
1. Those with a maturity of no more than 5 years and which otherwise meet the above criteria
for specified investments.
2. Multi-asset funds.
The council has applied a limit of £5m for non-specified investments.
The monitoring of investment counterparties
The credit rating of counterparties will be monitored regularly. The Council receives credit
rating information (changes, rating watches and rating outlooks) from Link as and when ratings
change, and counterparties are checked promptly. On occasion ratings may be downgraded
when an investment has already been made. The criteria used are such that a minor
downgrading should not affect the full receipt of the principal and interest. Any counterparty
failing to meet the criteria will be removed from the list immediately by the Section 151 Officer,
and if required new counterparties which meet the criteria will be added to the list.
Use of external fund managers: Except for pooled funds, it is the council’s policy not to use
external fund managers for any part of its investment portfolio. The council may use pooled
investment vehicles and fully appreciates the importance of monitoring the activity and resultant
performance of such investments. In order to aid this assessment, the council is provided with a
suite of regular reporting from its providers.

Page 32

Agenda Item 4
Annex 3
ANNEX 3 - GUIDANCE ON TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT,
MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION POLICY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT
STRATEGY (TMSS)
Prudential Code
The Prudential Code was developed by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) as a professional code of practice for capital finance, to which local
authorities must have regard.
Capital Expenditure
The Capital Expenditure table (section 2.1 of report) is split between the Council’s Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) and General Fund (GF or non-HRA).
The table also shows the resources used to fund the capital expenditure (being capital receipts
from the sale of assets, capital grants, capital reserves and revenue) and any shortfall in
resources. This shortfall is described as the ‘net financing need’ and represents the Council’s
borrowing need.
Borrowing Need (Capital Financing Requirement)
The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) represents the Council’s aggregate borrowing need.
i.e. the element of the capital programme that cannot be funded.
The table (section 2.2 of report) shows how the net financing need (borrowing requirement)
increases the CFR.
So that the CFR does not increase indefinitely, an annual resource contribution from revenue
must be set against it (called the Minimum Revenue Provision or MRP), which is shown in the
table.
Core Funds and Expected Investment Balances
This table (section 2.3 of report) shows that the Council may satisfy its net financing need by
borrowing from its own reserves or cashflow (internal borrowing) rather than from an external
provider (external borrowing).
Either form of borrowing may only be undertaken for capital expenditure purposes.
MRP Policy Statement
This describes the method for calculating the annual MRP contribution described above
(section 2.4 of report).
Borrowing
Current portfolio position – this table (section 3.1 of report) shows that the Council’s debt is not
more than the CFR because, as above, the CFR represents the Council’s aggregate borrowing
need.
Borrowing limits (section 3.2 and annex 1 of report) – there are various general controls on the
Council’s borrowing activity (operational boundary, authorised limit and maturity profiles).

Page 33

Agenda Item 4
Annex 3
PWLB is the Public Works Loan Board, which is the part of H.M. Treasury which provides loans
to local authorities to finance capital expenditure.
Basis Points
The report may refer to basis points, which is a unit of measure for interest rates. 1 basis point
is equal to 0.01%, so 100 basis points is 1%.
Annual Investment Strategy
This section (section 4 of report) sets out general controls on the Council’s investment activity
to safeguard the security and liquidity of its investments, including:
●
●
●
●

Creditworthiness of investment counterparties.
Counterparty money limits.
Counterparty time limits.
Counterparty country limits.

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream
This table (annex 1 of report) shows (separately for HRA and GF) the percentage of the
Council’s revenue stream that is used to finance the CFR (net interest payable and MRP).

Page 34

Agenda Item 4
Annex 4
ANNEX 4: THANET DISTRICT COUNCIL - CAPITAL STRATEGY 2022-23
1.

Background

A revision to the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities was issued
in December 2017 (with guidance notes issued in September 2018), with a new requirement
being that local authorities produce a Capital Strategy for consideration and approval by
Members.
The Capital Strategy forms part of this council’s integrated revenue, capital and balance
sheet planning. Capital expenditure and associated investment decisions are taken in-line
with service objectives and properly take account of stewardship, value for money, prudence,
sustainability and affordability. Due consideration is given to both risk and reward, and impact
on the achievement of priority outcomes.
2.

Priorities and Objectives

Like most councils, this council has capital expenditure needs that far exceed its potential
capital resources, particularly given public sector funding cuts and resource pressures.
Accordingly, this council’s Capital Protocol is that financial resources and assets are used to
their maximum effect, and that Financial Procedure Rules and Contract Standing Orders are
adhered to, with the following objectives:
a)

Corporate Plan/council priorities, including any environmental impact, are considered
when prioritising limited resources (see section 3 below).

b)

All financial implications arising from the project are identified (e.g. match funding
requirements and ongoing unsupported revenue costs etc.).

c)

The correct authorisation is obtained to enter into an agreement for capital
expenditure.

d)

The project progresses as approved and within budget. Any further budget approvals
will be sought at the earliest opportunity if it becomes apparent that further funding is
needed.

e)

Monitoring takes place in a timely manner, with frequency and detail determined by
the risks associated with the capital scheme.

f)

All expenditure is properly procured, incurred and recorded.

g)

The achievement of all project outcomes, outputs and results are assessed as part of
post project completion evaluation.

h)

There is a documented audit trail for all expenditure and income relating to the
project.

i)

Issues that may affect project delivery are identified and considered appropriately
(e.g. legal, VAT and capacity issues).

j)

Any significant changes to the project are considered in the overall prioritisation of the
capital programme and the correct authorisation is obtained.

Page 35

Agenda Item 4
Annex 4
3.

Corporate Priorities and Values

The council will use its corporate priorities to help prioritise its investment in, and disposal of,
assets. The current corporate priorities are:
Growth: We will continue to ensure we work to consider new ways to generate
income and invest our current resources. Delivering a Council that is financially strong
to discharge its services and invest in the growth of the District.
Environment: Having a clean and well-maintained environment remains important to
us. We will be clear with our residents on what we will do and what our asks of
residents are - cultivating a shared responsibility approach. Delivering a clean and
accessible living environment, maintaining an emphasis on prevention but where
necessary we will use an enforcement approach.
Communities: Through effective partnership working with both the public sector
agencies and the community, we will provide leadership and direction across the
district and the region to ensure everyone is working to the same goal. Delivering
high-quality housing, safer communities and enhancing the health and wellbeing of
our residents.
4.

Revenue Implications

As per section 2b, council rules require that all financial implications arising from a capital
project are identified, including revenue implications which can include:
a)

The cost of borrowing ( the revenue provisions for the repayment of debt and interest
charges).

b)

Loss of investment income from capital receipts and/or reserve balances.

c)

Running costs associated with the project.

d)

The positive impact of investment and economic growth on the council’s tax base and
business rates income.

e)

The generation of additional revenue streams for the council.

f)

The utilisation and attribution of staff time and resources to capital projects including,
but not limited to, the need to back-fill officer time attributed to capital schemes.

5.

Focussing the capital programme on delivering the council’s priorities

The capital programme demands significant resources which, if not managed effectively, can
actually impede what the council is looking to deliver. The Capital Strategy is to pay particular
attention to better aligning the capital programme to the council’s corporate values and
priorities.
In particular:
Slippage

Page 36

Agenda Item 4
Annex 4
Slippage will not be an acceptable norm. Capital schemes will be at risk of having their
council funding re-directed should there be delays that cannot be substantiated (schemes
that are externally funded may require more flexibility however). As such, schemes will be
profiled accurately so that annual capital budgets reflect the reality of capital scheme
delivery. Accordingly, the funding allocated to schemes that are significantly underspent at
year-end will be considered for redistribution or returned for savings.
Best use of our Assets
Assumptions that a council owned asset should be invested in or disposed of will be
challenged - consideration of whether that asset could be better utilised will need to be
evaluated and demonstrated.
Revenue Generation
Opportunities for revenue generation should be explored. Subject to (a) being able to
stabilise its financial position, and (b) risk considerations, the council should consider
investing in a wider choice of assets that can generate better returns/outcomes. More
information is given in the council’s Non-Treasury Investments Report.

The Corporate Management Team (CMT) will be taking the lead on achieving the focus the
capital programme requires and may, at its discretion, delegate some or all of this work to a
sub-team whose membership includes at least one CMT member (the Capital Team).

6.

Assessing and Monitoring Schemes

Officer arrangements for assessing and monitoring capital schemes is overseen by CMT
(which includes the council’s Section 151 Officer) and its Capital Team sub-group. The role of
CMT in this regard is:
a)

To coordinate all aspects of the council’s Capital Programme including the
assessment of bids, preparation of the programme, monitoring and post audit
reviews.

b)

To review annually the capital assessment and prioritisation methodology (see section
3 above).

c)

To evaluate and prioritise all projects submitted according to the council’s prioritisation
methodology.

d)

To produce a capital programme based upon the prioritised scoring methodology .

e)

To monitor capital schemes and to summarise all variation reports received by client
officers.

f)

To consider requests for capital bids during the year and, where the request is
considered urgent, to score and prioritise within the whole programme, together with
making funding arrangements.

g)

To review the scheme evaluation reviews and ensure lessons learnt and where
necessary to amend the Capital Protocol.

Page 37

Agenda Item 4
Annex 4
h)

To review all capital slippage and underspends at financial year end and re-evaluate
with regards to the council’s priorities and resources.

As per section 5, CMT may, at its discretion, delegate some or all of this work to a sub-team
whose membership includes at least one CMT member (the Capital Team).
The criteria for capital bids include:
a)

Meeting Corporate Priorities or requiring Health and Safety action.

b)

Not having a revenue impact that cannot be funded.

c)

Being clear as to the benefits the project provides.

d)

Identifying how the project will be managed.

e)

Having robust estimates for future costs and revenues.

f)

The sensitivity of costs and revenues to both external and internal risks.

On the basis of recommendations drawn up by CMT and/or the Capital Team, Cabinet
considers and approves the proposed draft capital programme for inclusion within the
budget. This budget is then recommended to full council for approval of the final capital
budgets for the year ahead. Cabinet is to receive regular capital budget monitoring reports
and a final outturn report at year end showing scheme performance; specifically
underspends, overspends and slippage supported by explanations.

7.

Additional Resources and Links with External Bodies

Project appraisals consider additional and alternative funding sources, match funding
requirements, bidding time frames and the likely success in being awarded grants.
Grants are allocated in relation to specific programmes or projects and this council aims to
maximise such funding; developing appropriate partnership, joint working and cross agency
initiatives to address council priority needs. Partners include central and local government,
government agencies, representative bodies of the local community, voluntary groups,
housing associations, health bodies, the police, and the private sector business community.

8.

Asset Management

An Asset Management Plan is the report on the systematic preparation of information to
optimise the deployment and utilisation of land, buildings and other assets. Accordingly the
council’s Asset Management Plan informs the links to both the council’s capital strategy and
capital programme.

9.

The council’s capital spending

Details of the Council’s capital programme, capitalisation policies, capital financing,
borrowing/funding restrictions, knowledge and skills, long-term liabilities and treasury

Page 38

Agenda Item 4
Annex 4
management are shown in the following documents (which are all available on the Council’s
website www.thanet.gov.uk):
a)

Medium Term Financial Strategy

b)

Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy
Statement and Annual Investment Strategy

c)

Statement of Accounts

d)

Non-Treasury Investments Report

e)

Budget monitoring reports

The council’s Section 151 Officer is satisfied with the affordability and risk associated with
this Capital Strategy and, where appropriate, has access to specialised advice to enable him
to reach this conclusion.

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
Annex 5
ANNEX 5: THANET DISTRICT COUNCIL - NON-TREASURY INVESTMENTS REPORT
2022-23
1.

Background

A revision to the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice was
issued in December 2017 (with guidance notes issued in July 2018), with a new requirement
being that local authorities produce a Non-Treasury Investments Report for consideration
and approval by Members.
‘Treasury management investments’ activity covers those investments which arise from the
council’s cash flows and debt management activity, and ultimately represents balances
which need to be invested until the cash is required for use in the course of business. The
council’s permitted treasury investments are set out in the Annual Investment Strategy.
‘Non-treasury investments’ are investments in financial assets and property primarily for
service purposes and/or financial return that are not part of treasury management activity.
2.

Permissible non-treasury investments

As per the previous Non-Treasury Investments Report, this council could:
a)

purchase property for service and/or commercial purposes.

b)

make investments for service and/or commercial purposes.

c)

make loans for service and/or commercial purposes.

This is now amended so that, for a new non-treasury investment in a new asset, the council
may only purchase property, make investments and/or make loans for service purposes (i.e.
not for purely/primarily commercial purposes, though it may still generate revenue).
Service investments are held in relation to council services (including service delivery,
housing, regeneration and preventative action) whereas commercial investments are held for
mainly financial reasons.
If a local authority is planning to acquire investment assets bought primarily for yield then it is
now unable to borrow from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) to finance any expenditure
in its capital plan. PWLB guidance is that investment assets bought primarily for yield would
usually have one or more of the following characteristics:
i)

buying land or existing buildings to let out at market rate.

ii)

buying land or buildings which were previously operated on a commercial basis
which is then continued by the local authority without any additional investment or
modification.

Page 41

Agenda Item 4
Annex 5
iii)

buying land or existing buildings other than housing which generate income and are
intended to be held indefinitely, rather than until the achievement of some meaningful
trigger such as the completion of land assembly.

iv)

buying a speculative investment asset (including both financial and non-financial
assets) that generates yield without a direct policy purpose.

In addition, CIPFA is revising both the Prudential and Treasury Management Codes to
militate against authorities borrowing primarily for yield and the risk of further government
intervention in the Prudential Framework. The revised Codes are due to have a soft launch
in 2022-23, with full implementation expected for 2023-24.
3.

Existing non-treasury investments

This council’s existing non-treasury investments include:
a)

Investment Property

The council’s 2020-21 draft Statement of Accounts shows a 31 March 2021 balance sheet
value of £23,292,000 for investment property. These accounts disclose a net yield of
£867,000 from investment property (rental income less direct operating expenses), which
represents an annual percentage yield of 3.7%.
As at 31 March 2021 the council had nearly 200 investment properties of various types with
an average balance sheet value of £118,000 per unit; including retail premises, leisure and
sporting facilities, maritime related assets, land and industrial units.
b)

Investments and Loans

Your Leisure Kent Limited (YL): This council engages YL, which is an Industrial and
Provident Society with charitable status, to run its leisure facilities. YL was registered on the
Mutuals Public Register on 16 April 1999 and was called Thanet Leisure Force Limited until
26 March 2013. The principal activity of YL is the management of leisure, hospitality and
entertainment facilities and associated service provision for the local communities in the
Dover and Thanet districts.
East Kent Opportunities LLP (EKO): To aid economic development and regeneration in
Thanet, this council in partnership with Kent County Council set up EKO as a limited liability
partnership. EKO was incorporated on 4 March 2008 with this Council and Kent County
Council having 50:50 ownership, control and economic participation in EKO.
The council acts as guarantor for YL in respect of certain loans taken out by YL. These
arrangements are described in the ‘Critical Judgements in applying Accounting Policies’ note
to the council’s Statement of Accounts.

Page 42

Agenda Item 4
Annex 5
In addition, the council makes loans from time to time to one or both of YL and EKO for
service purposes.
The council also previously had a non-treasury investment in East Kent Housing Limited, as
described below:
East Kent Housing Limited (EKH): EKH was a company limited by guarantee without share
capital; owned and controlled by this council, together with Canterbury City Council, Dover
District Council and Folkestone & Hythe District Council. EKH’s principal activity was to
manage and maintain each of the four council’s housing stock but, after housing
management services were brought back in-house under direct management of the
respective councils from 1 October 2020, EKH was dissolved on 13 April 2021.

4.

Investment Management Practices

Non-treasury investments are subject to the council’s normal approval processes for
revenue and capital expenditure and need not comply with the specific requirements of the
council’s annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy. These
processes ensure effective due diligence and consideration of the council’s risk appetite
(including proportionality in respect of overall resources), that independent and expert advice
is taken where appropriate, that scrutiny arrangements are properly made, and that ongoing
risk management is properly undertaken and acted upon.
Details of risk management, performance measurement and management, decision making,
governance, due diligence, reporting and knowledge and skills are shown below and in the
following documents (which are all available on the council’s website www.thanet.gov.uk):
a)
b)
c)
d)

Medium Term Financial Strategy
Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy
Statement and Annual Investment Strategy
Statement of Accounts
Capital Strategy

The key principle of control of risk, and optimising returns consistent with the council’s risk
appetite, is applied across all investment activities.
5.

Risk Management

The council’s risk appetite for any non-treasury investment should be clearly determined,
both individually and collectively, including the potential impact on the overall sustainability of
the council if the investment does not perform as intended. Key considerations also include:
a)

The significance of the amount and variability of both the investment income and
capital value to balancing the council’s budget.

Page 43

Agenda Item 4
Annex 5
b)
c)
d)

How the investment is financed and its liquidity, given the council’s cash flow
requirements.
Maximum periods for which funds may prudently be committed.
The setting of quantitative indicators to better assess risk exposure (including how
investments are funded and the rate of return over both the payback period of the
investment and the length of any associated borrowing).

6.

Performance Measurement and Management

Performance measurement and management of any non-treasury investment should include
both the ongoing capital value/security and yield. Key considerations include:
a)
b)
c)
d)

7.

Regular fair value assessments (at least annually), including the limitations and
assumptions inherent in such assessments.
Procedures to highlight key ongoing risks and changes in market conditions that may
adversely impact the security, liquidity and/or yield of any investment.
Ongoing repairs and other costs to maintain the income and value of any property
investment.
Any mitigating action required and undertaken to protect the income and value of any
investment.
Decision Making, Governance and Due Diligence

Decision making will be as open and transparent as possible. Key considerations include:
a)
b)
c)
d)

8.

The formulation and developments of business cases for approval.
Enhanced decision making and scrutiny, according to risk.
Arrangements for professional due diligence, including obtaining professional advice
where appropriate.
The identification and quantification of any implied material subsidies in investments
for service/regeneration purposes.
Reporting, Knowledge and Skills

Robust arrangements will be made for the assessment, implementation and monitoring of
any non-treasury investments; including:
a)
b)
c)
d)

Reporting any material increase in risk to capital and/or yield.
Regularly reviewing performance and risk reporting arrangements.
Ensuring that the range of skills required (including finance, property and economic
regeneration) are available, either in-house or externally sourced.
Arranging any specific staff training or qualifications that may be needed to meet
future requirements (capacity, skills, knowledge and culture).

Page 44

Agenda Item 4
Annex 6
ANNEX 6 - LINK’S ECONOMIC AND INTEREST RATE FORECAST (ISSUED BY LINK ON 10
NOVEMBER 2021)
1. The council has appointed Link Group as its treasury advisor and part of their service is to
assist the council to formulate a view on interest rates. Link provided the following forecasts
on 8th November 2021. These are forecasts for certainty rates, gilt yields plus 80 bps.

2. Additional notes by Link on this forecast table: ●

LIBOR and LIBID rates will cease from the end of 2021. Work is currently progressing to
replace LIBOR with a rate based on SONIA (Sterling Overnight Index Average). In the
meantime, Link’s forecasts are based on expected average earnings by local authorities for 3
to 12 months.

●

Link’s forecasts for average earnings are averages i.e., rates offered by individual banks may
differ significantly from these averages, reflecting their different needs for borrowing short
term cash at any one point in time.
3. The coronavirus outbreak has done huge economic damage to the UK and to economies
around the world. After the Bank of England took emergency action in March 2020 to cut
Bank Rate to 0.10%, it left Bank Rate unchanged at its subsequent meetings.
As shown in the forecast table above, Link’s forecast for Bank Rate now includes five
increases, one in December 2021 to 0.25%, then quarter 2 of 2022 to 0.50%, quarter 1 of
2023 to 0.75%, quarter 1 of 2024 to 1.00% and, finally, one in quarter 1 of 2025 to 1.25%.
4. Significant risks to the forecasts

●

Labour and supply shortages prove more enduring and disruptive and depress economic
activity.

●

Mutations of the virus render current vaccines ineffective, and tweaked vaccines to combat
these mutations are delayed, resulting in further national lockdowns or severe regional
restrictions.

Page 45

Agenda Item 4
Annex 6
●

The Monetary Policy Committee acts too quickly, or too far, over the next three years to
raise Bank Rate and causes UK economic growth, and increases in inflation, to be weaker
than Link currently anticipates.

●

The Monetary Policy Committee tightens monetary policy too late to ward off building
inflationary pressures.

●

The Government acts too quickly to cut expenditure to balance the national budget.

●

UK / EU trade arrangements – if there was a major impact on trade flows and financial
services due to complications or lack of cooperation in sorting out significant remaining
issues.

●

German general election in September 2021. Germany faces months of uncertainty while a
new coalition government is cobbled together after the indecisive result of the election. Once
that coalition is formed, Angela Merkel’s tenure as Chancellor will end and will leave a hole in
overall EU leadership.

●

Longer term US treasury yields rise strongly and pull gilt yields up higher than forecast.

●

Major stock markets e.g., in the US, become increasingly judged as being over-valued and
susceptible to major price corrections. Central banks become increasingly exposed to the
“moral hazard” risks of having to buy shares and corporate bonds to reduce the impact of
major financial market sell-offs on the general economy.

●

Geo-political risks, for example in Iran, North Korea, but also in Europe and Middle Eastern
countries; on-going global power influence struggles between Russia/China/US. These could
lead to increasing safe-haven flows.

5.

The balance of risks to the UK economy: -

●

The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is now to the downside, including
residual risks from Covid and its variants - both domestically and their potential effects
worldwide.

6.

Forecasts for Bank Rate
Link does not expect that Bank Rate will go up fast after the initial rate rise as the supply
potential of the economy is not likely to have taken a major hit during the pandemic: it
should, therefore, be able to cope well with meeting demand after supply shortages subside
over the next year, without causing inflation to remain elevated in the medium-term, or to
inhibit inflation from falling back towards the MPC’s 2% target after the spike up to around
5%. The forecast includes five increases in Bank Rate over the three-year forecast period to
March 2025, ending at 1.25%. However, it is likely that these forecasts will need changing
within a relatively short timeframe for the following reasons: -

●

There are increasing grounds for viewing the economic recovery as running out of steam
during the summer and now into the autumn. This could lead into stagflation which would

Page 46

Agenda Item 4
Annex 6

●
●

●
●

●
●

create a dilemma for the MPC as to whether to focus on combating inflation or supporting
economic growth through keeping interest rates low.
Will some current key supply shortages spill over into causing economic activity in some
sectors to take a significant hit?
Rising gas and electricity prices in October and next April and increases in other prices
caused by supply shortages and increases in taxation next April, are already going to deflate
consumer spending power without the MPC having to take any action on Bank Rate to cool
inflation.
On the other hand, consumers are sitting on over £160bn of excess savings left over from
the pandemic so when will they spend this sum, in part or in total?
It is estimated that there were around 1 million people who came off furlough at the end of
September; how many of those would not have had jobs on 1st October and would therefore
be available to fill labour shortages which are creating a major headache in many sectors of
the economy? So, supply shortages which have been driving up both wages and costs,
could reduce significantly within the next six months or so and alleviate one of the MPC’s key
current concerns.
Link also recognises there could be further nasty surprises on the Covid front, on top of the
flu season this winter, and even the possibility of another lockdown, which could all depress
economic activity.
If the UK invokes article 16 of the Brexit deal over the dislocation in trading arrangements
with Northern Ireland, this has the potential to end up in a no deal Brexit.
In summary, with the high level of uncertainty prevailing on several different fronts, it is likely
that these forecasts will be revised again over the next few months - in line with what the
new news is.
It should also be borne in mind that Bank Rate being cut to 0.10% was an emergency
measure to deal with the Covid crisis hitting the UK in March 2020. At any time, the MPC
could decide to simply take away that final emergency cut from 0.25% to 0.10% on no other
grounds than it being no longer being warranted and as a step forward in the return to
normalisation. In addition, any Bank Rate under 1% is both highly unusual and highly
supportive of economic growth.

7.

Forecasts for PWLB rates and gilt and treasury yields
As the interest forecast table for PWLB certainty rates above shows, there is likely to be a
steady rise over the forecast period, with some degree of uplift due to rising treasury yields in
the US.
There is likely to be exceptional volatility and unpredictability in respect of gilt yields
and PWLB rates due to the following factors: -

●

●
●

How strongly will changes in gilt yields be correlated to changes in US treasury yields (see
below). Over 10 years since 2011 there has been an average 75% correlation between
movements in US treasury yields and gilt yields. However, from time to time these two yields
can diverge. Lack of spare economic capacity and rising inflationary pressures are viewed as
being much greater dangers in the US than in the UK. This could mean that central bank
rates will end up rising earlier and higher in the US than in the UK if inflationary pressures
were to escalate; the consequent increases in treasury yields could well spill over to cause
(lesser) increases in gilt yields. There is, therefore, an upside risk to forecasts for gilt yields
due to this correlation. The Link Group forecasts have included a risk of a 75% correlation
between the two yields.
Will the Fed (Federal Reserve) take action to counter increasing treasury yields if they rise
beyond a yet unspecified level?
Would the MPC act to counter increasing gilt yields if they rise beyond a yet unspecified
level?

Page 47

Agenda Item 4
Annex 6
●
●
●
●

How strong will inflationary pressures actually turn out to be in both the US and the UK and
so put upward pressure on treasury and gilt yields?
How will central banks implement their new average or sustainable level inflation monetary
policies?
How well will central banks manage the withdrawal of Quantitative Easing (QE) purchases of
their national bonds i.e., without causing a panic reaction in financial markets as happened in
the “taper tantrums” in the US in 2013?
Will exceptional volatility be focused on the short or long-end of the yield curve, or both?
The forecasts are also predicated on an assumption that there is no break-up of the
Eurozone or EU within the forecasting period, despite the major challenges that are looming
up, and that there are no major ructions in international relations, especially between the US
and China / North Korea and Iran, which have a major impact on international trade and
world GDP growth.

8.

Gilt and treasury yields
Since the start of 2021, there has been a lot of volatility in gilt yields, and hence PWLB rates.
During the first part of the year, US President Biden’s, and the Democratic party’s,
determination to push through a $1.9trn (equivalent to 8.8% of GDP) fiscal boost for the US
economy as a recovery package from the Covid pandemic was what unsettled financial
markets. However, this was in addition to the $900bn support package already passed in
December 2020. This was then followed by additional Democratic ambition to spend $1trn on
infrastructure, which has just been passed by both houses, and an even larger sum on an
American families plan over the next decade; this is still caught up in Democrat / Republican
haggling. Financial markets were alarmed that all this stimulus was happening at a time
when: -

1. A fast vaccination programme has enabled a rapid opening up of the economy.
2. The economy has been growing strongly during 2021.
3. It started from a position of little spare capacity due to less severe lockdown measures than
in many other countries.
4. And the Fed was still providing stimulus through monthly QE purchases.
These factors could cause an excess of demand in the economy which could then unleash
strong inflationary pressures. This could then force the Fed to take much earlier action to
start increasing the Fed rate from near zero, despite their stated policy being to target
average inflation.
9.

At its 3rd November Fed meeting, the Fed decided to make a start on tapering QE
purchases with the current $80bn per month of Treasury securities to be trimmed by $10bn
in November and a further $10bn in December. The $40bn of MBS (mortgage-backed
securities) purchases per month will be trimmed by $5bn in each month. If the run-down
continued at that pace, the purchases would cease entirely next June but the Fed has
reserved the ability to adjust purchases up or down. This met market expectations. These
purchases are currently acting as downward pressure on treasury yields and so it would be
expected that Treasury yields would rise as a consequence over the taper period, all other
things being equal. However, on the inflation front it was still insisting that the surge in
inflation was "largely" transitory. In his post-meeting press conference, Chair Jerome Powell
claimed that “the drivers of higher inflation have been predominantly connected to the
dislocations caused by the pandemic” and argued that the Fed’s tools cannot address supply
constraints. However, with the Fed now placing major emphasis on its mandate for ensuring
full employment, (besides containing inflation), at a time when employment has fallen by 5

Page 48

Agenda Item 4
Annex 6
million and 3 million have left the workforce, resignations have surged due to the ease of
getting better paid jobs and so wage pressures have built rapidly.
10. With wage growth at its strongest since the early 1980s, inflation expectations rising and
signs of a breakout in cyclical price inflation, particularly rents, the FOMC's (Federal Open
Market Committee) insistence that this is still just a temporary shock "related to the pandemic
and the reopening of the economy", does raise doubts which could undermine market
confidence in the Fed and lead to higher treasury yields.
11. As the US financial markets are, by far, the biggest financial markets in the world, any
upward trend in treasury yields will invariably impact and influence financial markets in other
countries. Inflationary pressures and erosion of surplus economic capacity look much
stronger in the US compared to those in the UK, which would suggest that Fed rate
increases eventually needed to suppress inflation, are likely to be faster and stronger than
Bank Rate increases in the UK. This is likely to put upward pressure on treasury yields
which could then spill over into putting upward pressure on UK gilt yields.
12. The balance of risks to medium to long term PWLB rates: ●

There is a balance of upside risks to forecasts for medium to long term PWLB rates.

13. A new era – a fundamental shift in central bank monetary policy
One of the key results of the pandemic has been a fundamental rethinking and shift in
monetary policy by major central banks like the Fed, the Bank of England and the ECB
(European Central Bank), to tolerate a higher level of inflation than in the previous two
decades when inflation was the prime target to bear down on so as to stop it going above a
target rate. There is now also a greater emphasis on other targets for monetary policy than
just inflation, especially on ‘achieving broad and inclusive “maximum” employment in its
entirety’ in the US, before consideration would be given to increasing rates.
●

●
●

●

●

The Fed in America has gone furthest in adopting a monetary policy based on a clear goal of
allowing the inflation target to be symmetrical (rather than a ceiling to keep under), so that
inflation averages out the dips down and surges above the target rate, over an unspecified
period of time.
The Bank of England has also amended its target for monetary policy so that inflation should
be ‘sustainably over 2%’ before starting on raising Bank Rate and the ECB now has a similar
policy.
For local authorities, this means that investment interest rates and very short term
PWLB rates will not be rising as quickly or as high as in previous decades when the
economy recovers from a downturn and the recovery eventually runs out of spare
capacity to fuel continuing expansion.
Labour market liberalisation since the 1970s has helped to break the wage-price spirals that
fuelled high levels of inflation and has now set inflation on a lower path which makes this
shift in monetary policy practicable. In addition, recent changes in flexible employment
practices, the rise of the gig economy and technological changes, will all help to lower
inflationary pressures.
Governments will also be concerned to see interest rates stay lower as every rise in central
rates will add to the cost of vastly expanded levels of national debt; (in the UK this is £21bn
for each 1% rise in rates). On the other hand, higher levels of inflation will help to erode the
real value of total public debt.

Page 49

Agenda Item 4
Annex 6
14. Investment and borrowing rates
●

Investment returns are expected to improve in 2022-23. However, while markets are pricing
in a series of Bank Rate hikes, actual economic circumstances may see the MPC fall short of
these elevated expectations.

●

Borrowing interest rates fell to historically very low rates as a result of the COVID crisis
and the quantitative easing operations of the Bank of England and still remain at historically
low levels. The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash balances has
served local authorities well over the last few years.

●

On 25.11.20, the Chancellor announced the conclusion to the review of margins over gilt
yields for PWLB rates which had been increased by 100 bps (basis points) in October 2019.
The standard and certainty margins were reduced by 100 bps but a prohibition was
introduced to deny access to borrowing from the PWLB for any local authority which had
purchase of assets for yield in its three-year capital programme. The current margins over
gilt yields are as follows: -.

▪

PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps)

▪

PWLB Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80 basis points (G+80bps)

▪

PWLB HRA Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps)

▪

PWLB HRA Certainty Rate is gilt plus 80bps (G+80bps)

▪

Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps)

●

Borrowing for capital expenditure. Link’s long-term (beyond 10 years) forecast for Bank Rate
is 2.00%. As some PWLB certainty rates are currently below 2.00%, there remains value in
considering long-term borrowing from the PWLB where appropriate. Temporary borrowing
rates are likely, however, to remain near Bank Rate and may also prove attractive as part of
a balanced debt portfolio. In addition, there are also some cheap alternative sources of
long-term borrowing if an authority is seeking to avoid a “cost of carry” but also wishes to
mitigate future re-financing risk.

●

While authorities may not be able to avoid borrowing to finance new capital expenditure, to
replace maturing debt and the rundown of reserves, there will be a cost of carry, (the
difference between higher borrowing costs and lower investment returns), to any new
borrowing that causes a temporary increase in cash balances.

Page 50

Agenda Item 5
HRA Budget 2022-23
Council
Report Author

10 February 2022
Chris Blundell (Director of Finance)

Portfolio Holder

Cllr David Saunders, Cabinet Member for Finance

Status

For Decision

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

Budget and Policy Framework

Executive Summary:
This report presents the 2022-23 budget and 2022-26 capital programme for the Housing
Revenue Account.

Recommendation(s):
That Council approves:
1.

That the revised HRA budget estimates for 2022-23 are approved;

2.

That the revised Housing Revenue Account capital programmes (Annex 1) for
2022-26 are approved;

3.

That the HRA business plan is noted.

4.

That the cap on leasehold insurance at £100 per annum is removed.

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
The financial implications of the budget are laid out within the body of the report.
Legal
Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a suitably qualified named officer
to keep control of the council’s finances. For this council, this is the Deputy Chief
Executive and this report is helping to carry out this function.
The requirements of other relevant statutes have been referenced within the body of this
report, where relevant.

Page 51

Agenda Item 5
Corporate
Corporate priorities can only be delivered with robust finances. Both the draft budget and
the level of reserves recommended in this report are believed to be sufficient to contribute
towards meeting those priorities and to deliver services.

Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender reassignment,
religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage &
civil partnership.
There are no equity and equalities implications arising directly from this report, but the
Council needs to retain a strong focus and understanding on issues of diversity amongst
the local community and ensure service delivery matches these.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: ● Growth
● Environment
● Communities
1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

This report seeks approval of the 2022-23 Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
budget and associated capital programme.

1.2

A review of the council’s HRA reserves for both revenue and capital is included.
The report further sets out the assumed housing rent increases to assist in funding
the budget.

1.3

The budget is set against the background of the Tenant and Leasehold service
coming back in house from 1st October 2020.

2.0

Housing Revenue Account Revenue Budget

2.1

The council’s responsibilities in respect of the need to keep a Housing Revenue
Account (HRA) are contained within Section 74 of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989 (‘The Act’) and its use is heavily prescribed through statute. The
HRA records all of the revenue expenditure and income relating to land, dwellings

Page 52

Agenda Item 5
and other buildings provided under Part II of the Housing Act 1985 and
corresponding earlier legislation. It must be separate from the General Fund
Revenue Account and therefore is to all intents and purposes ring-fenced.
Although the HRA for an individual year may result in a deficit, it is a requirement
of ‘The Act’ that overall it must maintain a surplus, which means that expenditure
must be carefully planned to remain within the limits of the anticipated income
streams over the medium term.
2.2

The Housing Revenue Account Business Plan sets out the main strategic priorities
for investment in homes and services over the long term. The draft strategic
priorities, set out below, were prepared as part of the review of HRA budgets
ready for the launch of the new in-house service on 1 October 2020 and
subsequently were the subject of consultation with representatives of the council’s
tenants and leaseholders. This report now recommends that these draft strategic
priorities are adopted:
●

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
3.0

To maintain a Housing Revenue Account that is self-financing and reflects
both the requirements of residents and the strategic visions and priorities of
the council.
To provide opportunities for tenants and leaseholders to become involved in
the management of their homes.
To provide safe, well maintained and energy efficient homes.
To invest in long-term improvements to the council’s housing stock and
provide homes that people choose to live in.
To increase the council’s housing stock through programmes of new build and
refurbishment.
To review the alternative options for homes that cannot be maintained to meet
current and future standards.
To maintain a rent and charging policy that is both affordable for residents and
ensures the resources needed for investment in homes and services.
To maintain a minimum level of HRA reserves of £1m.

Details of the HRA revised expenditure estimates

3.0.1 Contract and Price Inflation - For direct expenditure budgets, price increases
have been included at 10% for gas/electric and 5% elsewhere, which is the best
estimate of the level of inflation at this point in time, unless there is a known
inflation factor within a specific contract, in which case this has been used.
3.0.2 Repairs and Maintenance - Since the service was brought back in house it has
become clear that across both revenue and capital that there has been significant
under investment in the housing stock by East Kent Housing and that across
revenue budgets and capital programmes an element of catchup is required.
There are also additional requirements on local authorities to move towards net
zero carbon for their housing stocks, as a result £60.9k is required in 2022-23 to
update Energy Performance Certificates (EPCs) across the whole housing stock
in order to determine the best way forward for our poorest performing stock.
The refurbishment of 3 playgrounds is also required, at a cost of £36k in 2022-23.

Page 53

Agenda Item 5
The combination of these 3 key growth elements means the repairs and
maintenance programme will require growth of £584k in 2022-23, although this
also incorporates an element of annual uplift in contract value.
3.0.3 Supervision and Management General – Additional revenue budget is required
to continue the requirements laid out by Kent Fire and Rescue for a ‘waking watch’
provision at the tower blocks, whilst the associated on-going capital works
cabinetare completed. One-off growth of £330k is required in 2022-23 to facilitate
this. Additional costs associated with the increase in provision of Housing
Response Officers at tower blocks, as per 16 December 2021 Cabinet report, are
factored into the budget.
3.0.4 Bad or Doubtful Debts Provision – The bad debt provision is budgeted at 1.75%
of rental income and a corresponding increase in the bad debt provision of
£11.89k is proposed.
3.0.5 Depreciation for Fixed Assets – The estimated depreciation charge for dwellings
and other assets is calculated at £4.31m in 2022-23.
3.0.6 Debt charges – Since the self-financing settlement, the council has operated a
two loan pool approach whereby the HRA and GF are each responsible for the
repayment of their own apportionment of loans. As at 1 April 2022, the HRA had
£12.6m of loans outstanding.
3.1

Details of the HRA income estimates

3.1.1 Rent Increases – Social rents have been set based on government rent
guidance. Affordable Rents are linked to local market rents and to the Local
Housing Allowance for the area. Rents are applied to individual properties at the
lower of either 80% of the local market rent or the Local Housing Allowance. The
budget presented has been set based on the inflation measure Consumer Price
Index (CPI)+1% increase for social and affordable rent tenants. Based on the
proposed increase across the whole stock the average rent is £88.63, this is an
average increase of £3.69p per property per week.
The proposed average rent of £88.63 is substantially below the Local Housing
Allowance levels - LHA rents are in the order of 50% higher - and actual private
sector rents are higher still. It should also be noted that approximately three
quarters of council tenants are in receipt of either Housing Benefit or Universal
Credit. Whilst individual cases may vary due to specific circumstances, it is
reasonable to assume that in general, increased rent will be matched by increased
benefit.
The HRA has been running at a deficit now for a number of years due to the
requirement by the government to reduce social and affordable rents by 1% per
annum for the four years starting in 2016/17.
This coupled with other one-off costs, such as the waking watch and bringing the
service back in house has meant that increasing rents by the maximum CPI + 1%
is essential to ensure the HRA comes back to a surplus position over time.
In addition the HRA needs to maintain a surplus so that should unforeseen capital
expenditure be required the HRA has sufficient revenue resources so it can

Page 54

Agenda Item 5
undertake additional borrowing. For example to finance future requirements in
relation to net zero carbon.
3.1.2 Non Dwelling Rents - Garage rents are to remain at £12 per week. All sites are
being reviewed for development and regeneration opportunities, as well as a new
planned maintenance programme.
3.1.3 Service Charge Increases – Service charges are calculated based on actual cost.
Tenant service charge increases continue to be capped at £3 a week. The new
service charge associated with the increase in the provision of Housing Response
Officers at the tower blocks, in line with the 16 December 2021 Cabinet report,
has been factored into the budget.
3.1.4 Heating Charges – Heating charges will be recovered on actual cost based on
usage and contract price and then apportioned across the block dependent on
bedroom size.
3.1.5 Investment Income – This consists of interest accruing on HRA balances. The
budget for 2022-23 of £75k is based on achieving an average interest rate of
0.5%.
3.2

The Housing Revenue Account Reserves
The council operates three main HRA reserves: a HRA Major Repairs Reserve,
the HRA Balance Reserve and the HRA New Properties Reserve:

3.3

Housing Revenue Account Major Repairs Reserve – An amount equivalent to
the actual depreciation charge for dwellings is transferred to the Major Repairs
Reserve to fund capital works to the existing stock. In-line with the depreciation
calculation, the estimated transfer to the Major Repairs Reserve for 2022-23 is
£4.31m.
The funding held in this reserve is used to fund the Major Repair schemes
included on the capital programme, enabling the council to maintain the housing
stock in a good condition. The council currently maintains its social housing to
Decent Homes Plus standard.

3.4

Housing Revenue Account Balance Reserve – This reserve holds the
accumulated balance of prior year surpluses and deficits relating to the HRA.
Accordingly, it is used to draw down to budgeted deficit for 2022-23 and smooth
out any peaks and troughs within the 30 year business plan. As at 1 April 2022
the forecast reserve balance is £6.121m.

3.5

HRA New Properties Reserve – This reserve holds funds set aside to fund either
new build properties or the acquisition of suitable properties for use within the
HRA.
Earmarked match funding for the Margate Intervention, New Build
Programme and 141 Acquisition Programme has been set aside in this reserve as
agreed by Cabinet. As at 1 April 2022 the forecast reserve balance is £0.7m and
is due to be drawn down during 2022-23. Income generated from affordable rents
will continue to be set aside in this reserve for re-investment.

3.6

The proposed HRA revenue budget for 2022-23 is set out below.
Table 1: 2022-23 HRA Budget

Page 55

Agenda Item 5
DRAFT - HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BUDGET
2022-23
Proposed
£’000
Income
Dwelling Rents (gross)
Non-dwelling Rents (gross)
Charges for services and facilities
Contributions towards expenditure

-14,025
-228
-615
-572

Income Subtotal

-15.440

Expenditure
Repairs & Maintenance
Supervision & Management – General
Supervision & Management – Special
Rents, rates, taxes and other charges
Bad or doubtful debts provision
Depreciation/impairment of fixed assets
Capital Expenditure funded from HRA
Debt Management Costs
Expenditure Subtotal

4,983
4,483
798
254
245
4,310
1,300
9
16,382

Net Costs of Services Sub Total

942

Share of Members and Democratic Core
HRA Investment Income
Debt Interest Charges
Government Grants and Contributions
Adjustments made between accounting basis and
funding basis

148
-75
989
0

(Surplus)/Deficit on HRA

-411
1,593

Housing Revenue Account Balance:
Forecast Surplus at Beginning of Year
(Surplus)/Deficit for Year
Estimated Surplus at End of Year
3.7

-6,121
1,593
-4,528

Leasehold Insurance Recharges

Page 56

Agenda Item 5
Currently leaseholders are capped at £100 per annum in relation to the recharge of
insurances. It is proposed to remove this arbitrary cap so that leaseholders are
recharged with the actual cost of insurance for their properties. This approach is
supported by recent legal advice that states that HRA tenants should not subsidise
leaseholders costs. This should result in additional income of around £20k to the
HRA. The annual average cost per leaseholder will rise from £100 to £159.
4.0

The HRA Capital Programmes for 2022-23 to 2025-26

4.1

The Capital Programme like revenue has required some extensive revisions since
the service came back in house.

4.2

From 2022-23 due to the general condition of our estates an additional £200k per
annum has been built into the Capital Programme to deal with the required capital
improvements.

4.3

Extensive fire precaution works are required across the stock in order to meet fire
regulations and as such an additional £230k has been added for this purpose.

4.4

As the government’s net zero carbon commitment is firmly in place following COP26,
an additional £20k has been built into the programme annually to allow for the
installation of thermal insulation.

4.5

As part of the lift replacement programme following further review a further 2 lifts
require replacing at Invicta House and so a further £412k has been added to the
programme.

4.6

£50k has been added in order to undertake works to the HRA garage sites.

4.7

The most significant capital programme in 2022-23 and beyond is the £12.3m
allocated to tower block works. An element of these budgeted works relates to
cladding replacement, associated scaffolding and consultancy costs. The Council
currently has had 4 of its 5 applications to the Building Safety Fund progressed.
These once all finalised and if approved will significantly reduce the amount of Major
Repairs Reserve required to finance the cladding replacement. The £12.3m is also
unlikely to all be spent in 2022-23 as per the current programme and work is
currently underway to reprofile this into future years which will further alleviate the
pressure on the Major Repairs Reserve.

4.8

Annex 1 contains the full breakdown of the HRA Capital Programme.

4.9

Going forward a large capital scheme will be required in order to ensure the stock
meets net zero carbon. Currently the forecast cost of this is £38m at today's prices,
approximately £12m of this requirement is built in the capital programme over the next
30 years through a combination of heating and insulation budgets, although this
leaves a substantial shortfall that will need to be financed either via the major repairs
reserve or borrowing or through external grant funding, such as the Social Housing
Decarbonisation Fund.

4.10

A new build programme from 2024-25 onwards of £8.1m, financed through borrowing
and other sources of capital finance has been factored into the programme and
revenue assumptions. The programme aims to create an additional 30 units of
affordable housing per annum.

Page 57

Agenda Item 5
5.0

Proposed Average Rents
Table 3 Average rents 2022-23
AVERAGE RENTS 2022-23
PROPERTY TYPE

SOCIAL RENT

AFFORDABLE RENT
(inclusive of service
charges)

BEDSITS

60.30

85.70

1 BED HOUSE

82.66

79.29

1 BED FLAT

71.38

83.71

2 BED
HOUSE/BUNGALOW

89.88

113.33

2 BED FLAT

80.71

126.91

3 BED HOUSE

98.08

153.72

3 BED FLAT

95.80

160.80

4 BED HOUSE

108.29

171.09

4 BED FLAT

95.67

176.74

5 BED HOUSE

117.79

n/a

6.0

Working Balances and Reserves

6.1

Section 32 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 requires local authorities to
have regard to the level of reserves needed for meeting estimated future
expenditure. The Section 151 Officer is responsible for providing advice, so that
decisions taken on reserves represent proper stewardship of public funds.
Reserves should be set and maintained at a level at least sufficient to meet any
unexpected increase in expenditure or shortfall in income in the ensuing year that
cannot be met from within the approved budget. Any decision that fails to take into
account their advice may require a report to be made to the council under Section
114 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988.

6.2

These reserves are required in order to comply with proper accounting practice,
whilst others have been created to earmark resources for known or predicted
liabilities. A summary of the projected reserves, allowing for the budget proposals,
is shown in Table 1 below for information.
Table 2 HRA Reserves
Reserves

31 Mar 22

Movement 31 Mar 23

Movement 31 Mar 24

Page 58

Agenda Item 5
£000
HRA - Balances
Reserve

£000

£000

£000

£000

6,120

-1,593

4,527

-470

4,058

700

-700

0

0

0

HRA - Major
Repairs Reserve

14,099

-13,150

949

1,575

2,524

Total

20,919

-15,443

5,476

1,105

6,581

HRA - New
Prop/ Repairs
Reserve

7.0

30 year HRA Business Plan

7.1

When considering the annual budget and effects of inflation (measured by CPI and
RPI), to ensure the HRA remains sustainable in the longer term a review of the HRA
30 year business plan has been undertaken.

7.2

However in order to produce a business plan certain assumptions have to be made
in order to forecast both expenditure and income. The two key indices used within
the business plan are the CPI and Retail Price Index (RPI).

7.3

Income to the HRA is linked in the main to CPI. The current business plan assumes
a CPI + 1% increase annually for rental income, the maximum allowed under statute.
Members have the authority to freeze rental income or set a rent increase below CPI
+1%. However the financial impact on the business plan would be significant if this
was agreed and it would take longer to make a surplus. It would also limit the
revenue resources to the HRA in the affordability to undertake additional borrowing, if
required, to deal with emerging issues such as net zero carbon.

7.4

Expenditure is mainly linked to RPI in the business plan model and this is also
subject to variations over the term of the business plan. Our current assumptions are
5% in 2022-23, reducing to 3% in the longer term.

7.5

When we compare the previous business plan assumptions to the latest, we can see
that the current business plan model generates surpluses much sooner.

7.6

This is as a result of a much higher CPI rate, forecast in line with Bank Of England
assumptions, the previous plan assumed CPI at 2%, whereas we’ve seen CPI
increase to 3.1% in September 21 and the future forecast is now 4.5% in Q3 2022-23
and 3.5% in Q3 2023-24.

7.7

The full impact of this increase is offset in earlier years as a result of increased costs
of the waking watch and repairs and maintenance and in later years by RPI being
forecast to be a similar level to that of CPI.

7.8

However, at least in the short term, it’s important to keep rent levels at their maximum
possible level as both indexes have seen significant changes over recent months and
this looks set to continue.

Page 59

Agenda Item 5

7.9

With these variations in mind efficiency savings may be required from 2024 onwards
once the indexation position begins to settle. Some efficiencies can naturally be
gained from the repairs and maintenance programme once capital works are
completed to some assets, such as lifts and when repairs bringing the condition of
the stock back to expected levels has occurred.

7.10

The charts below show the current overall position of the HRA based on these
assumptions over the next 30 years and compares this to the previous business plan:

Page 60

Agenda Item 5

7.11

New Build and Acquisition Programme
To date the Council has delivered 162 additional homes over the last nine years, with
funding already in place for 28 more (Foy House and new build phase 4).
The business plan incorporates new build expenditure of £8.1m per annum from
2024-25 funded via borrowing and other sources inc. capital receipts.
The plan assumes 20 new units over the first 5 years of the business plan and then
30 new units per year from year 6, once the units are developed using the first
tranche of £8.1m investment.
This investment should also have a direct impact on homelessness in the district by
creating additional units of affordable housing. Covid has led to a reduction in the
amount of affordable private rented accommodation in the district, through a
combination of people using previously rented accommodation as a place to now
work by the coast or maximising income through Airbnb.

7.12

Financing the Business Plan
The main source of income for the HRA is the rents paid by Council tenants.
From 1st April 2020 the Government announced that Council landlords could
increase their rents again by CPI + 1% for a period of 5 years.
In addition the HRA receives income from other services such as service charges
for services provided over those covered by their rental charges.

Page 61

Agenda Item 5
As expenditure is split between revenue and capital, resources to finance that
expenditure are also split between revenue and capital. The key financing streams
are:
Revenue:
● Dwelling Rents (from both social and affordable rents)
● Non-dwelling Rents (from garage rentals, aerials on roof tops etc.)
● Charge for services and facilities (charges for services not included in
rental)
● Contributions towards expenditure (leaseholder charges, rechargeable
repairs, other income)
Capital
● Major Repairs Reserve (revenue monies are set aside annually to fund
major capital expenditure on dwellings)
● New Properties Reserve (revenue monies set aside to build new
dwellings)
● Capital Receipts (from sales of dwellings or other assets)
● Borrowing
8.0

Budget Estimates

8.1

The estimates are considered to be robust and have been subject to significant
review and scrutiny by the Section 151 Officer, the Corporate Management Team,
and Financial Services Officers.

8.2

In general, realistic assumptions have also been incorporated with regards to
inflationary increases, and where appropriate these have been reflected in both
expenditure and fees and charges income.

9.0

Adequacy of HRA Reserves

9.1

The level of HRA reserves remain healthy with HRA balances in excess of the
targeted £1m even after the pressure of forecast annual deficits in the HRA in the
short term.

9.2

The New Properties Reserve is likely to be fully utilised by the end of 2022-23 due
to further progression of the Council’s new build housing and refurbishment
schemes. This is as expected, although in future years, the reserve will continue
to be replenished with affordable housing rents.

9.3

The Major Repairs Reserve is under considerable pressure over the short term
due to the large capital programme spend forecast in 2022-23. This spend is
forecast to reduce the reserve to £949k at the end of 2022-23, although over the
following years the reserve is forecast to be replenished.

10.0

Options

10.1

Council could choose not to accept some or all of the proposals. This could
include the proposed housing rent increases. However, Council would also need

Page 62

Agenda Item 5
to consider the impact on the business plan and potential ways of bridging the
budget gap if the level of balances fall below the recommended amount.

Contact Officer: Chris Blundell (Director of Finance)
Reporting to: Madeline Homer (Chief Executive)
Annex List
Annex 1: Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme 2022-26 Budget

Background Papers
Title: Held in Financial Services
Corporate Consultation
Finance: N/A
Legal: Estelle Culligan (Director of Law and Democracy)

Page 63

This page is intentionally left blank

Annex 1 - HRA Capital Programme 2022-23 to 2025-26
2024-25

2025-26

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Major Works
Re – Roofing
Window & Door Replacements
Kitchen Replacements
Bathroom Replacements
Rewiring
Heating
Fire Precaution Works
Tower Block Works
Planned Refurbishments (Door Entry and Entrance Doors)
Structural Repairs
Thermal Insulation
Lift Refurbishment & Replacements
Garages
Estate Improvements
Capital Salaries
Total Major Works

477
377
477
159
232
375
350
12,308
65
1,411
30
824
50
200
125
17,460

290
175
487
162
159
382
350
0
65
260
30
0
50
200
125
2,735

300
175
497
165
191
390
350
0
20
431
30
0
50
200
125
2,924

310
175
507
168
165
397
350
0
20
100
30
0
50
200
125
2,597

Disabled Adaptations
Disabled Adaptations
Total Major Works + Disabled Adaptations

300
17,760

300
3,035

300
3,224

300
2,897

Development Programme
Margate Intervention programme
New build Phase 4

1,000
2,848

0
2,000

0
0

0
0

Page 65

Agenda Item 5

2023-24

Annex 1

2022-23

SCHEME

New Build Phase 5
Acquisitons Programme
Capitalised Salaries
Development/Acquistion Budgets
Total HRA Capital Expenditure

FUNDING
Major Repairs Reserve
Revenue Contributions
New Properties Reserve
Section 106
Capital Receipts
Prudential Borrowing
141 Capital Receipts
Other
Total Funding

0
360
30

0
0
30

8,100
0
30

8,100
0
30

4,238
21,998

2,030
5,065

8,130
11,354

8,130
11,027

2022-23

2023-24

2024-25

2025-26

£’000
17,460
300
1,000

£’000
2,735
300
300

£’000
2,924
300
300

£’000
2,597
300
300

390
1,994
854

30
1,400
300

30
4,860

30
4,860

2,940
11,354

2,940
11,027

21,998

5,065

Agenda Item 5

Annex 1

Page 66

Agenda Item 6
2022-23 Budget and 2022-26 Medium Term Financial Strategy
Council

10 February 2022

Report Author

Chris Blundell, Director of Finance and Acting Section 151
Officer

Portfolio Holder

Cllr David Saunders, Cabinet Member for Finance

Status

For Decision

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

Budget and Policy Framework

Executive Summary:
This report presents the 2022-23 budget and 2022-26 capital programme for the General
Fund

Recommendation(s):
1. The 2022-23 General Fund revenue budget be approved
2. The 2022-26 General Fund capital programme be approved

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
As detailed in the body of the report
Legal
The Council is required to set a balanced budget each year by various pieces of legislation,
notably section 31(A) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992. Section 151 of the Local
Government Act 1972 requires a suitably qualified named officer to keep control of the
council’s finances. The Director of Finance is currently undertaking this role in an acting up
capacity. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Section 151 Officer to
report on the robustness of the estimates made for the purposes of the calculations for the
budget, and on the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves. The Council must have
regard to the report when making decisions about the budget.

Corporate
The budget has been prepared with reference to the corporate priorities.

Page 67

Agenda Item 6
Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it. Actions arising from this report - in particular the savings requirements will each be assessed for equalities implications by relevant managers.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: ●
●
●

1.

Growth
Environment
Communities

Introduction

1.1.

The Budget Strategy was approved by Cabinet on 18 November 2021 and it informs the
approach adopted for this report. This report provides a draft 2022-23 budget for Cabinet’s
consideration and recommendation to Council for approval. The budget has been produced
within the context of our corporate priorities, government financial policy and resident
feedback. Whilst only provisional information is available regarding Government funding at
the time of writing the report, projected funding is presented along with budget pressures
which give rise to a balanced budget for 2022-23.

1.2.

A review of the council’s reserves is included and the report further sets out the assumed
Council Tax to assist in funding the budget. The report sets out the proposed budget savings
to balance next year’s budget, taking into account all of the above.

1.3.

The report covers the General Fund, both revenue and capital. It also makes reference to
the Treasury Management Strategy and the Flexible Use of Capital Receipts. A separate
report is included elsewhere on this agenda in regards to the Housing Revenue Account.

2.

Background and Context

2.1.

Next year’s budget will be set within the context of the continued uncertainty of the Covid-19
pandemic. The current financial year has been more stable in financial terms compared to
the previous financial year, however the emergence of the Omicron variant has renewed
concerns of the on-going impact of covid on society and the economy.

2.2.

The on-going impact of the pandemic has translated into financial pressures for the council,
most notably for waste collection and the provision of temporary accommodation for
homelessness, as detailed in section 3.8. The continuation of the pandemic also has the
potential to impact upon our financing if further social and economic restrictions are

Page 68

Agenda Item 6
implemented, which in turn could affect economic growth and potentially the income we
receive from fees and charges, council tax and business rate tax.
2.3.

The Council has been successful in bidding for funding from the Levelling Up Fund, both for
Margate and Ramsgate, and also the Margate Town Deal. These funds offer the opportunity
for significant investment in the two of the district’s towns and the budgetary impacts are set
out in the draft 2022-23 to 2025-26 capital programmes.

2.4.

The provisional finance settlement provided a welcomed increase in funding for local
government for next year. However, only a one year allocation was provided and the
settlement promised more fundamental changes in the distribution of funding could be
implemented as early as 2023-24. Work will start “in the coming months” to work out “with
the sector” how to update funding distribution and “challenges and opportunities facing the
sector ”. These changes in funding could be significant, and make forecasting for 2023-24
and beyond very difficult.

3.
3.1.

Draft 2022-23 General Fund Revenue Budget
Table 1 below sets out a balanced draft 2022-23 General Fund revenue budget for Council's
consideration approval.
Table 1 - General Fund Revenue Draft 2022-23 Budget
Factor

£000

Base Budget 2021-22

£000
16,720

Spending Pressures
Pay award, increments, Living Wage, NI premium

687

Non-pay inflation

276

Proposed growth (service pressures, etc.)

1,039

Repayment of debt and interest costs

19

Sub-total

2,021

Savings, Efficiencies and Income Generation
Fees and Charges

-172

Savings, efficiencies and income generation

-667

Sub-total

-839

2022-23 Net Service Revenue Base Budgets

17,902

Reserve Movements

136

Page 69

Agenda Item 6
2022-23 NET GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET

18,038

Funded by
Government Grants

-1,227

Retained Business Rates & Section 31 Grants

-6,119

Business Rates Collection Fund Deficit
Council Tax
Council Tax Collection Fund Deficit

354
-11,160
114

Total Funding

-18,038

3.2.

The balanced budget position represents a significant improvement on the budget gap of
£691k that was included in the budget strategy presented to Cabinet in November 2021.
The improved position has been facilitated by a combination of a downward revision in
spending pressures, identification of additional savings in conjunction with a better than
expected allocation of government grants in the provisional finance settlement.

3.3.

Taking all the adjustments into account provides a proposed net service revenue budget of
£17.902m. This represents a £1.182m or 7.1% increase on net revenue spending compared
to 2021-22. The key aspects of the draft budget reports are set out in detail in the following
sections.
Pay and Remuneration

3.4.

A 2% pay award has been assumed in the budget estimates and this pay-offer has been
communicated with unions. Consequently, the 2022-23 budget has assumed that £687k
additional resources are needed to fund increases in pay due to pay awards, increments, the
National Living Wage (NLW) and the employer’s National Insurance contribution 1.25%
increase. It should be noted every 1% increase in the pay-award creates a permanent and
cumulative budget pressure of £170k.

3.5.

Increases in the NLW now mean that staff on the lowest grade are paid in accordance with it.
The NLW rate will increase by 6.6% from 1 April 2022 and the government has accepted the
Low Pay Commissions recommendations to increase the NLW to two-thirds of median hourly
pay by 2024. This equates to increases of approximately 6% a year over the medium term,
with the NLW rising to £10.50 per hour by April 2024.

3.6.

At this level, the NLW would significantly impact upon the integrity of the Council’s pay
structure. Pay differentials would be removed or eroded for roles that had been assessed
under the equal pay framework to require different levels of pay because of the requirements
of the role. As such, management are currently considering proposals to address this and
develop a pay offer for 2022-23 that is both fair and affordable. The expected financial
implications of this review have been included in the draft budget.

Page 70

Agenda Item 6
Contractual and Essential Price Increases
3.7.

The draft budget assumes a £276k pressure for non-pay inflation pressure, largely relating to
increased utility costs and non-negotiable contractual commitments.
Growth

3.8.

The November Budget Strategy identified potential budget growth of £1.117m. Following
further review by Cabinet and CMT this estimate has been revised downwards by £78k to
£1.039m, and as such the proposed growth items for 2022-23 budget are set out as follows.

3.9.

Waste Collection £360k - Additional resources for two additional waste collection rounds.
This is currently in operation during 2021-22, but staffed using agency workers and reported
as an overspend.

3.10.

Temporary Accomodation £400k - Homelessness has grown as a challenge for many
local authorities over the last year, Thanet included. There are additional pressures on
Housing Services as the gap between supply and demand increases and previously
plans have been developed to ensure that this pressure is minimised. The council has
reviewed and is delivering its homelessness strategy action plan, is regularly monitoring
the levels of homelessness and has commissioned new services to address the
increasing need for support. This work will continue. The council has also successfully
bid for new government funding to support homelessness services locally.

However the Council is seeing another surge of homelessness across the district as a
result of Covid and in addition the eviction ban that came to an end on 1 June has added
additional service and financial pressures.
The financial pressure shown in-year monitoring is currently estimated as a £444k
overspend for 2021-22 based on current homelessness levels. There are a number of
savings that have already been delivered in this area, and as such £444k pressure is the
net position after taking these savings into consideration.
As such, a budget pressure of £400k has been used as the starting position for 2022-23,
with an assumption that the impact will be reduced in future years.
3.11.

Your Leisure £160k - As part of previous budget decisions Your Leisure’s (YL) funding was
reduced by £350k, with this being phased over two years and expected to result in £160k in
year 1 and a further £190k in year 2. It quickly became apparent that this level of saving
was not deliverable and as a result the £190k was removed as a permanent budget saving.
This did however leave the residual £160k to be delivered and although the funding was
reduced, YL effectively ran at a trading loss of a similar value. Then the pandemic hit,
putting leisure services under huge pressure, resulting in an agreed payment of £160k in
2020-21 to help manage the impact. Currently monitoring is assuming the same payment
for this year in order to help manage the ongoing impact of covid. As a result of this and
ongoing pressures on YL, it is proposed to 'reinstate' this payment moving forward until such
time as there may be an opportunity to revisit longer term saving opportunities for the
delivery of leisure services.

3.12.

Building Control £50k - Historically the service has not been able to meet its budgeted
income targets, management action started to come back on track but Covid has further

Page 71

Agenda Item 6
compounded the issues and the ability to manage this. This is a legacy pressure that
now needs to be resolved and it is proposed that income budgets are adjusted
downwards by £50,000.
3.13.

Licensing £50k - Previous pressure on service in relation to income streams, with this
being further impacted by Covid and the wider economy. This now means that Taxi
drivers are finding alternative work and as a result there is no mechanism for managing
this impact as this is a significant element of the income. It is proposed that income
budgets are adjusted downwards by £50,000.

3.14.

Regeneration £17k - Currently the Director of Regeneration post is included in the base
budget at 3 days per week, however to facilitate the work associated with the delivery of
the Margate Town Deal and Levelling Up proposals this was increased to 4 days on a
temporary basis. It is now requested to move this role to 4 days a week on a permanent
basis, in order to deal with the growing regeneration requirements for the district.

Fees and Charges
3.15.

The fees and charges paper presented to Council for approval on 12 January 2022
recommends increases and variations to fees and charges for the forthcoming year that will
generate an anticipated additional income of £172k.
Savings, Efficiencies and Income Generation

3.16.

The priority when identifying proposed savings has been to minimise the impact on council
services and also to minimise compulsory redundancies.

3.17.

As explained in November’s budget strategy, an exercise was undertaken to review vacant
posts. Some of these roles have been vacant for a period of time and following an
assessment of the suitability for removal by Cabinet and the Corporate Management Team a
number of roles have been recommended for removal from the establishment, providing
savings totalling £248,000. Details of the posts to be removed from the establishment are
presented in Annex 1.

3.18.

In addition to the removal of vacant posts, further budget savings, efficiencies and income
adjustments have been identified and considered by Cabinet and the Corporate
Management Team. It is proposed that savings totalling £395,750 be approved by Council.
These savings are detailed in Annex 2, with the key changes set out below.

3.19.

Director of Property
● One redundancy at the KIC £22,000
● Additional rental income from the KIC £50,000 and 38-40 Grosvenor Place £13,400

3.20.

Director of Finance
● £30,000 savings from insurance contract retendering
● £20,000 from a service restructure, £20,000 from budgetary review and £30,000 from
the reduction in our bad debt provision

3.21.

Director of Communications
● Contractual and other efficiencies from digital team totalling £44,000

Page 72

Agenda Item 6

3.22.

Director of Housing and Planning
● £75,000 increase in planning fee income budgets to reflect increase in anticipated
income
● £33,000 of additional costs recharged from the General Fund to the HRA

3.23.

Director of Operations
● £30,000 of additional income for the bulky waste service resulting from increase in
demand for this service.

3.24.

It should be noted that there is one compulsory redundancy arising from this saving review.
Furthermore, members should note that it is also not anticipated that any of the savings
proposed will have a significant equalities impact on any group with a protected
characteristic.

4.

Funding Allocations

4.1.

The Chancellor of the Exchequer, announced his Autumn Budget and Spending Review
2021 (SR) on 27 October 2021 and this brought relatively positive news for the local
government sector. As reported in the November budget strategy, local authorities will
receive an additional £4.8bn in core grant funding over the next 3 years (roughly an
additional £1.6bn in each year). This is equivalent to an average annual increase of 2.8% in
cash terms and 0.6% after inflation. Furthermore, after factoring in the Government’s
assumptions for council tax, the sector’s spending power should increase by 3.2% in case
terms over the 3 year period, or 1% after inflation.

4.2.

The SR was followed up by the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 2022-23
on 16 December 2021. It is fair to say that the provisional settlement was surprisingly far
more positive for Thanet than expected with new and unanticipated funding allocations.
However, there are no projected or indicative numbers for the remainder of the spending
review period (2023-24 and 2024-25) and more fundamental changes in local government
funding have been clearly signalled for 2023-24 (see section 6).

4.3.

It is difficult to make accurate like for like comparisons to last year, because of the one-off
nature of some of the covid related allocations that were provided, but our provisional core
grant funding for 2022-21 is broadly £939k higher or 16.3% than was allocated last year.
The government’s preferred metric for local authority funding is ‘Spending Power’, which
combines the core grant funding with assumed council tax increases (it should be noted the
government always assumed the maximum increase permissible without triggering a
referendum), under which funding for TDC is presented as increasing by £1.293m or 7.8%
compared to 2021-22.

Page 73

Agenda Item 6
Table 2 - 2021-22 Forecast and 2022-23 Assumed Government Funding
2021-22
£000
Revenue Support Grant

Change
£000

Change
%

100

103

3

3.0%

Business Rates Baseline Funding
Level

5,054

5,054

0

0.0%

Settlement Funding Assessment

5,154

5,157

3

0.1%

New Homes Bonus

125

549

424

339.2%

Lower Tier Funding

215

227

12

5.6%

0

348

348

N/A

263

415

152

57.8%

Core Grant Funding

5,757

6,696

939

16.3%

Assumed Council Tax

10,736

11,090

354

3.3%

Spending Power

16,493

17,786

1,293

7.8%

Services Grant
Compensation for under indexing the
BR multiplier

4.4.

2022-23
£000

Thanet’s spending power per
head is £125.32, which gives
us a rank of 40 out of 181
district councils and 6th out of
the 12 Kent districts.
We have received the 27th
highest increase spending
power per head for 2022-23
with a £9.11 increase on last
year, this is the second
highest in Kent.

4.5.

However, some caution must be taken when comparing Spending Power figures, both in
terms of year-on-year increases and also in comparison to other authorities. For instance
government funding of approximately £1.3m was provided in 2021-22 to support local
authorities losses associated with the pandemic and these allocations are not included in the
assessment of Spending Power. If these covid related allocations are taken into account
then funding between the two years is relatively flat. This is worthy of consideration due to
the emergence of Omicron and the risk it or future waves of the covid pandemic present to

Page 74

Agenda Item 6
the Council’s income streams in 2022-23. Spending Power also excludes some sizeable
specific grants, such as those for homelessness and also the amount of growth retained
from the business rates system, so it does not give a complete picture of the amount of
funding each authority has.
4.6.

Furthermore, if Core Grant Funding and Spending Power is considered over a long period of
time it can be seen that TDC’s Core Spending Power was £1.46m higher in 2015-16, this
represents a reduction of 7.6% in cash terms. So whilst this additional funding is very much
welcome a broader assessment of the funding position would support the Institute of Fiscal
Studies commentary that “austerity was over but not undone”.

4.7.

The most disappointing aspect of the settlement was it provided funding allocations for one
year only, as opposed to the multi-year settlements that have been provided in previous
years. This means that there remains considerable uncertainty about the shape of local
government funding and how much money the Council will receive from central government
from 2023-24 onwards.

4.8.

In the provisional settlement consultation papers it has indicated that some of the funding
received in 2022-23 is intended to be for one-year only, as that the grant streams in their
current form will not continue in 2023-24. Consequently, it would not be prudent to include
all of this additional funding into our base budget, because its continuation cannot be
assumed in later years of our Medium Term Financial Plan. Therefore it is recommended
that a significant proportion of this funding is contributed to our reserves, and this prudent
approach is reflected in this draft budget.

4.9.

More detail on the individual grant allocations included in the settlement are provided in the
following sections. There are also various grants that are provided outside of the settlement,
most notably for Thanet funding associated with homelessness and cyber security; these

Page 75

Agenda Item 6
allocations are yet to be announced and members will be updated as and when further
information is available.
Government Grants
4.10.

4.11.

4.12.

Revenue Support Grant £103k - RSG is a non-ring fenced grant that can be used for any
purpose and TDC will receive £103k in 2022-23, and a 3% inflationary uplift has been
applied compared to 2021-22. RSG has been in decline for a number of years (for example
TDC received £4.1m in 2013-14) and is expected to be removed or replaced in the next
couple of years.
Lower Tier Support Funding £227k - This grant was introduced in 2021-22 and is
continued into 2022-23. It is a grant allocation that as its name suggests is just provided to
lower tier authorities.
Services Grant £348k - This is a new one-off grant that is distributed to every authority in
the country. The provisional settlement consultation papers make it very clear that this is a
one-off grant. It is likely to be replaced by the more radical changes to funding distribution
that are expected for 2023-24.
New Homes Bonus

4.13.

The Council will receive a bonus of £549k in 2022-23. The NHB is calculated based upon
net movement in the council tax base as at the end of October each year. We understand
that our allocation has been based upon the following figures: 343 new homes in the district
and 252 empty homes brought back into use between October 2020 and October 2021.

4.14.

The end of New Homes Bonus has been expected for many years, following successive
years of reform and government’s stated intention to replace it with a new scheme to
incentivise house building. As such perhaps the biggest surprise of the provisional finance
settlement was inclusion of the New Homes Bonus for another and what must surely be its
final year.
The budget strategy had assumed that the scheme would not continue into
2022-23 and as such this really is a welcome bonus or windfall.

4.15.

Despite the unexpected allocation for 2022-23, Thanet still receives relatively low allocations
compared to other districts. Our allocation is the lowest in per head terms in the whole of
Kent at £3.87 per head (£0.88 in 2021-22), compared to the Kent average of £11.08 per
head (£11.71 in 2021-22). The average for all English district councils is £9.47per head
(£9.69 in 2021-22).

4.16.

Due to the expected termination of the scheme in 2023-24 it is recommended that funding
from NHB is not used to support the base budget in 2022-23, but is instead used to reduce
the council’s indebtedness which will be facilitated by a budgeted contribution to reserves.
This approach is reflected in the draft budget.
Business Rates

4.17.

The retained business rates system is a highly complex system, which is ripe for reform as
explained in section 6. In simple terms, the Council has included £6.119m in next year’s
budget from business rates related income, in addition to a £354k payment to the collection
fund. The breakdown of this budget allocations is set out below.

Page 76

Agenda Item 6
4.18.

Baseline Funding Level £5.054m - This is a guaranteed allocation that has been
determined by a government assessment of relative needs and resources. It has been
frozen compared to last year. Across the medium term, this is a relatively secure allocation
and as a minimum the council should continue to receive this funding from a reformed
system.

4.19.

Compensation of under indexation £415k - Every year business rate bills for local
businesses are adjusted by inflation, however this year primarily because of the pandemic
the Chancellor of the Exchequer decided to freeze bills. Consequently local authorities are
provided with a central government grant to compensate them for the reduction in business
rates income that can be collected. It is uncertain as to whether local authorities will
continue to receive this compensation in the future.

4.20.

Business Rates Growth £650k - Since the retained business rates system was introduced
local authorities have been allowed to retain a proposition of the additional business rates
that are generated in their district. TDC also participates in a Kent wide pool that allows
Kent authorities to retain a greater proportion of income than operating independently under
the national scheme.
The Council could retain as much as a maximum of £1.1m from this component of the
system in 2022-23, however this strand of income is the most uncertain element and is
highly volatile; both in terms of in-year allocations and also for future reform.
As such, the budget strategy for the number of years has been to only include approximately
half of possible growth in the base budget. Accordingly, for 2022-23, £650k of possible
retained growth is included in the base budget, which is equivalent to 59% of potential
growth. Any amount received over and above this budgeted amount will be reported to
members as part of the budget monitoring and accounts closure process.

4.21.

Collection Fund Deficit £354k - The council must budget to make a £354k payment to the
business rates collection fund in 2022-23. This is to make good the deficits on the collection
of business that were incurred during 2020-21 due to the pandemic. This cost has been
partly funded by central government and an allocation from reserves is being made to fund it
in full.
Council Tax

4.22.

The Government has confirmed in its provisional financial settlement for 2022-23 that
Council Tax referendum limits will apply, so that any increase above the greater of 2% or £5
on a Band D equivalent will be subject to a referendum. For TDC a £5 increase in the Band
D equivalent is the maximum permitted and this is the proposed increase for 2022-23.

4.23.

The combination of the 1.86% increase in the council tax base and a £5 increase in the
Band D equivalent annual charge will provide a £420k increase in income for the authority.

4.24.

Similarly to Business Rates, a budgeted payment of £114k must be made to the Council Tax
Collection Fund to make good the pandemic related deficits incurred during 2020-21. Again,
a government grant was made to cover part of this cost and a contribution from reserves is
budgeted to cover this in full.

Page 77

Agenda Item 6
5.

Reserves
Reserves

5.1.

General Fund Reserves: The Local Government Finance Act 1992 specifies that
precepting authorities, such as Thanet District Council, must have regard to the level of
reserves needed for estimated future expenditure when calculating the budget
requirement. In order to comply with this requirement each year the council reviews its
level of reserves, taking account of the financial risks that could pose a threat to the
Authority over the medium term. The general reserve, or contingency, of £2m is
considered to be the minimum required for the planning period.

5.2.

Earmarked Reserves: In addition to the General Reserve, a number of earmarked
reserves are set aside for specific purposes. Local Authorities generally hold reserves for
three purposes:
●
●
●

5.3.

working balance to help cash flow
contingency for unexpected events or emergencies
building up funds to meet known or predicted requirements

Ultimately they are held to help the Council manage risk. This is important as we cannot
borrow money over the medium-term, other than for investment in assets, and we are
required to balance our budget on an annual basis.
Reserve Levels

5.4.

2020-21 was a peculiar or exceptional year for reserves, with our General Fund reserves
and balance levels rising to £25.7m at the end of 2020-21, an £11.3m increase compared
to the previous year.

5.5.

However, it can be seen in the following chart that this is solely due to monies held in
reserves relating to future expenses or the mitigation of risk associated Covid-19 (as
shown on the yellow bar in the chart). These reserves mainly hold s31 grant payments
made to us from government in order to compensate for lost business rate income due to
pandemic related business rate reliefs. All districts had a similarly inflated reserves
position at 31 March 2021, which should not be considered to be available to spend on
anything other than budgeted council tax and business rates deficits. In 2022-23 we will
be budgeting £468k from these reserves for this purpose.

5.6.

After accounting for and excluding all Covid-19 related reserve movements, the Council’s
other earmarked reserves total £12.4m (see red bar in the chart), representing only a
£24k increase compared to 2019-20.

Page 78

Agenda Item 6

5.7.

Despite the relatively healthy looking balance of our earmarked reserves, much of these are
fully committed to specific projects, purposes or risks (e.g. £2m is committed to part fund
Thanet Parkway). A full breakdown of our reserves is set out at Annex 3.
Planned reserve movements

5.8.

To balance next year’s budget, the following reserve contributions are proposed.

5.9.

Collection Fund Movements £448k - A £270k contribution will be taken from the
Equalisation reserve and £198k from the Covid Reserve to fully fund the budgeted collection
fund deficits on Business Rates and Council tax as referred to at sections 4.20 and 4.23
respectively.

5.10.

Homelessness £125k - As set out in section 3.8 the council is forecasting £400k of
additional financial pressures in 2022-23 associated with homelessness. At the end of
2020-21 the Council held £330k in a specific earmarked reserve for homelessness, with the
purpose of the reserve being to hold unspent homelessness grant and recovered rent
deposit monies to draw down on depending on the Economic Climate and homelessness
projects. Given the increasing demand being placed on the service it is considered
appropriate to make a £125k contribution from this earmarked reserve in 2022-23 to support
the base budget. Moreover, it is proposed to use the residual balance on the reserve across
the duration of the Medium Term Financial Strategy.

Page 79

Agenda Item 6
5.11.

Governance £180k - On 2 November 2021 Council approved the statutory
recommendations made by external auditors, Grant Thornton, which included the
recommendation that the Council:
“Revisit the financial plans and identify additional savings plans to address the
further cost pressures created in resolving the grievances and whistleblowing
complaints.”
Therefore, a £180k contribution to reserves is proposed to be included in the 2022-23
budget and also over the next four years of the medium term financial plan, in order to
restate the reserve balances that were used to fund the anticipated costs associated with the
conclusion of governance and disciplinary matters. This contribution helps the council
improve its financial health and resilience.

5.12.

New Homes Bonus £549k - As set out in section 4.15, the unexpected NHB allocation for
2022-23 should be viewed as a windfall and not included in the base budget. As such, it is
recommended that a new reserve is established, titled NHB Reserve, and a £549k
contribution is made, with this balance used to reduce debt.
Adequacy of Reserves

5.13.

The Council is committed to replenishing reserves. This position is shared by the external
auditor as set out in their statutory recommendations, as approved by Council on 2
November 2021, and also referred to and concluded within their Audit Findings Report for
2019-20. Therefore, it is reassuring that the Council is able to contribute the proposed
budget amounts as set out above.

5.14.

It has been well reported in recent years that the Council holds relatively low reserves,
compared to other district councils, to historic levels and our risk profile. This is
supported by analysis undertaken within the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s financial resilience index, as shown in the two following charts.

Usable Revenue Reserves as at 31 March 2020 as proportion of 2019-20 Budgeted Net
Revenue Expenditure

TDC - Blue bar
Other Kent Districts - Yellow Bars

Page 80

Agenda Item 6

5.15.

The blue bar on the preceding chart represents TDC’s relative reserve holdings at the end
of 2019-20 (2020-21 data is not yet available) in comparison to other shire districts. Other
Kent districts are highlighted in yellow. We are the 29th lowest out of the districts in
England and the second lowest in Kent, in that our total General Fund reserves of
£14.5m, at that time, represented 81% of our net revenue budget. In comparison, the
average for a district council is almost double Thanet’s, at 152%. Therefore if Thanet’s
reserves were at the average level for districts, our reserves would be more than £27m.
Usable Revenue Reserves as % of Net Revenue Expenditure: 31 March 2013 to 31
March 20 compared with County and all districts average

5.16.

The chart above shows that our relative reserve position (as shown in the blue line) was
close to the all district (grey line) and Kent district (yellow line) averages at approximately
80% of net revenue spending at the end of 2012-13, but that our relative reserves position
deteriorated over a three year period to a low point of only 46% in 2015-16. Since then
our reserve position has improved, as we have repaired the damage done over that three
year period and by the end of 2019-20 we were approximately back to a position
comparable to 2012-13. However, we are now positioned significantly below the Kent and
all district averages.

5.17.

Looking longer term, the Council is still working to identify the £2m of savings, which have
been agreed by Cabinet, that are anticipated to be needed to balance the budget over the
life of the Medium Term Financial Plan. Our current reserves position doesn’t provide
much room for manoeuvre should the full range of savings not be identified.

6.

Local Government Funding Reform

6.1.

The provisional finance settlement promised more fundamental changes in the distribution of
funding could be implemented as early as 2023-24. Work will start “in the coming months” to
work out “with the sector” how to update funding distribution and “challenges and
opportunities facing the sector ”. These changes in funding could be significant, and make
forecasting for 2023-24 and beyond very difficult. Potential reforms include:

6.2.

Fair Funding Review (FFR) to examine the relative needs and allocation of resources
between authorities. This was initially planned for introduction in 2019-20, but was first

Page 81

Agenda Item 6
delayed due to the Brexit impasse and secondly due to Covid. This could result in more or
less funding being allocated to Thanet depending on the outcome of this review.
6.3.

System Reset This will in effect remove and redistribute the business rate growth that
authorities’ have generated since the system was introduced in 2013-14.

6.4.

Fundamental review of Business Rates - The government committed to conduct a
fundamental review of business rates, with the objective of:
● reducing the overall burden on businesses
● improving the current business rates system
● considering more fundamental changes in the medium-to-long term

6.5.

The implications of this review for Local Government are uncertain, but have the potential to
be profound. Initial signs from the 2022-23 local government finance settlement, based on a
change in the direction or composition of allocations, indicate there may be more funding
available for authorities with higher levels of deprivation, which would be constituent with the
Government’s levelling up agenda.

6.6.

Nonetheless, the risks to TDC’s finances associated with the reform of the local government
finance system are significant. To avoid going into too much technical detail surrounding
these reforms, in simple terms the outcome of these reforms mainly puts at risk the amount
of funding the council can retain from business rates.

6.7.

To illustrate this the following chart below shows the amount of business rates income that
could be included in our budgets depending on different outcomes and timing of the reforms,
as modelled under three different scenarios.

6.8.

The starting point in 2022-23 is the assumed budget position, which is the same for all three
scenarios because the assumptions for the forthcoming financial year have now been

Page 82

Agenda Item 6
finalised. The budget position of £6.1m was based on a baseline funding level (retained
income that is guaranteed based on a formula) of £5.055m, £415k of government
compensation for freezing business rates nationally with a further £608k of income included
from additional income retained from growth in our business rates base. In simple terms the
more business premises that are established in Thanet, the more our business rates base
grows and the more of this income we are allowed to retain under the Business Rates
Retention system. Our budget strategy has allowed for 50% of this expected growth to be
included in our base budget, the remainder has not been budgeted for because of the
uncertainty and volatility associated with its collection. The lines then diverge from 2023-24.
6.9.

Moving forwards across the medium term the three scenarios vary depending on the timing
and scale of local government reform. Under the neutral and pessimistic scenarios the
reform occurs in 2023-24, as illustrated in the chart with steep reductions in income in these
years. However, in the more optimistic scenario, the reform comes much later in the
spending review period at 2025-26, however it can be seen that it still has an impact on our
income, albeit later and not as significant.

6.10.

In summary, current modelling is indicating that TDC is expected to be a net loser from
funding reform even under the most optimistic scenario, but also should relatively benefit
from delayed implementation of reform. However, it must be stressed that these are only
three possible scenarios in a wide range of varied and possible outcomes. It is of course
possible that the reform may provide a significantly different outcome to any of the three
scenarios presented and that our income could be much higher or lower as a result. These
forecasts are therefore intended to illustrate the extent our business rates income may vary
over the medium term and assist with planning for possible and differing eventualities.

6.11.

Please note, these forecasts have been informed by modelling undertaken by the
independent funding advisory service that the council subscribes to.

7.
7.1.

Risks and Uncertainty
In addition to the residual Covid-related risk, there are a number of other risks and variables
that officers and members must consider when approving the 2022-23 budget. The other
key risks that will be considered within the budget setting environment are:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

7.2.

Non-delivery of savings
Pressure on service delivery, in particular rising demand for homeless services
Local political stability
Ability to fund climate change demands and pressures
Ongoing impact of Brexit
Level of government financial support
Underestimates of inflation, especially that of energy.

It will be necessary to continue to manage and monitor key budgetary, service and corporate
risks through our risk management processes and strategy.

Page 83

Agenda Item 6
8.

Medium Term Financial Strategy

8.1.

As stated at above, the expected changes in the local government funding system make
forecasting for 2023-24 and beyond very difficult. However, despite this uncertainty it is
prudent to plan for a number of different eventualities including those that are more
pessimistic.

8.2.

The Council’s MTFS has been built factoring the business rate modelling assumptions
explained in section 6 and the other key assumptions that have been applied to neutral,
optimistic and pessimistic scenarios. Table 3 and the chart below sets out the budget gaps
forecast across the medium term as varied under the different scenarios.
Table 3: MTFS
2022-23
£’000

8.3.

2023-24
£’000

2024-25
£’000

2025-26
£’000

Neutral

0

1,591

2,305

2,895

Pessimistic

0

2,621

3,389

3,710

Optimistic

0

447

837

1,103

Table 3 and the chart show under the neutral scenario the budget gap increases to above
£1.5m from 2023-24 onwards and climbs to £2.9m in 2025-26, mainly due to the
aforementioned funding reforms. Under the pessimistic scenario the gaps have a similar
profile but are bigger in size across the timeframe, compared to the central forecast, with a
gap of £3.7m in the last year of the MTFS. Whereas under the optimistic scenario the
budget gaps are relatively modest even up to 2025-26 when funding reform is assumed in
this model.

Page 84

Agenda Item 6

8.4.

In November 2021 Cabinet approved the recommendation that the Council identifies
longer-term budget savings in excess of £2m, which can be implemented if and when
necessary to close the forecast budget gaps presented above. This exercise has already
begun and will be undertaken at pace, to ensure the Council is prepared to react proactively
to the financial challenges we face over the medium term. CMT are currently considering
and developing proposals that will be discussed further with Cabinet in the first quarter of
2021.

8.5.

Initial discussions indicate that reform and repositioning of our property estate will provide a
significant proportion of this £2m target, with a number of propositions being considered,
including a review of corporate accommodation and the Manston Depot. In addition to this,
other areas for consideration include but are not limited to:
●

●
●
●
●

●
●

9.

In-line with the identified areas requiring growth to support continued service delivery in
housing and waste the Cabinet is committed to continuing to ensure the services are
delivered as efficiently as possible within the MTFS.
Continued digitalisation and transformation of front facing and back office services
A review of ICT with consideration of whether the service should be removed from the
East Kent Shared Service partnership and brought back in-house.
Implementation of a new public toilet strategy, working closely with town and parish
council’s.
In-line with the Margate Town Deal prospectus, a review of the provision and delivery of
leisure and cultural services in the district, including the Theatre Royal and Winter
Gardens.
Consideration of using the Minor Works team to generate income from selling
handyperson services.
A review of printing services income and expenditure including scope to in-source more
printing.

Resident Views and Corporate Priorities

9.1.

Every year the council conducts a residents’ survey to capture the feedback of a random
selection of local people. The survey is carried out to understand the priorities of residents
and to ask for feedback on a range of key council services. Results are used to help inform
the annual budget setting process and to ensure that resources can be directed towards the
areas that matter most to local people. Feedback regarding satisfaction with key council
services is also used as part of the way that the council monitors its overall performance to
understand trends in satisfaction.

9.2.

The 2021 survey was conducted at its usual timeframe of the Autumn, in order to feed into
the budget process. This follows the delayed 2020 survey which took place in February March 2021 having been impacted by the temporary hold on business as usual activities
during the council’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic.
The budget

9.3.

This year’s survey found that 58% were surprised that the council receives such a small
proportion of the overall Council Tax bill. Some 37% of respondents expressed agreement to

Page 85

Agenda Item 6
the statement that the council provides value for money for the Council Tax that is paid.
When respondents were asked whether they were aware that the council had seen an £8
million (60%) drop in funding from central government, the majority (70%) said they were
aware, compared to 30% who were not. This is a 10% increase in awareness when
compared to 2020.
Residents’ priorities
9.4.

When invited to select three responses from a given list of priorities, feeling safe (43%)
remains the top response in making Thanet a good place to live. The number of people who
selected this increased slightly (by 2%) compared to last year.

9.5.

This year, thriving towns (40%) is the second most commonly selected priority for
respondents - previously third. Quality of beaches (38%) has shifted from second into third
priority and clean streets (35%) remains fourth. Despite this change in order of priorities, it is
worth noting that there are only five percentage points between the second, third and fourth
priorities.

9.6.

When asked to select three responses from the same list of priorities, which reflect areas
within the council’s control that most need improving, clean streets (50%) remain the top and
thriving towns (34%) remain second. Affordable, decent housing (32%) is now third above
feeling safe (29%) which is once again fourth, however this is slightly higher (by 3%) than it
was in the 2020 survey. Job prospects (28%) has fallen to fifth place having been third in the
2020 survey.

9.7.

Despite some of the changes in order of priority, when considering the responses of ‘most
important’ together with those ‘most in need of improving’, clean streets, thriving towns and
feeling safe once again remain the overall priority areas.
Service Cuts and Savings

9.8.

Respondents were asked, if a service they cared about were at risk of being cut, how likely
or willing would they be to support eight different suggestions. The most popular suggestion
was that of the council moving to cheaper and smaller offices which received the support of
83% of respondents. Transferring appropriate services to town/parish councils (63%) and the
move to digital delivery of services (62%) were second and third respectively. The sale of
assets no longer required was supported by 57%. Although respondents were less likely to
support paying a new or higher charge each time they use the service (45%), volunteering
some of their time (41%), paying more Council Tax (32%) or making a one off contribution
(31%), support for each of these options has increased slightly or stayed the same when
compared to the 2020 survey.
Corporate Priorities

9.9.

The council’s budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy supports the corporate priorities
set out within the Corporate Statement which very much focuses on delivering in these areas
of concern. The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2021-25 was approved by Cabinet
on 14 January 2021. It set out themes to be adopted to address the projected funding gap
for 2021-22 and beyond. These were as follows:
●

Growth: We will continue to ensure we work to consider new ways to generate income
and invest our current resources. Delivering a council that is financially strong to
discharge its services and invest in the growth of the district.

Page 86

Agenda Item 6

10.

●

Environment: Having a clean and well-maintained environment remains important to us.
We will be clear with our residents on what we will do and what our asks of residents are
- cultivating a shared responsibility approach. Delivering a clean and accessible living
environment, maintaining an emphasis on prevention but where necessary we will use
an enforcement approach.

●

Communities: Through effective partnership working with both the public sector
agencies and the community, we will provide leadership and direction across the district
and the region to ensure everyone is working to the same goal. Delivering high-quality
housing, safer communities and enhancing the health and wellbeing of our residents.

General Fund Capital Programme

10.1.

This section considers the capital programme and supporting strategy for the period 2022-23
to 2025-26. A summary of the programme is included in Annex 4.

10.2.

A minimum level of £15k has been set for capital expenditure on a fixed asset which is
expected to be in use for more than one year. Expenditure below this value is not treated as
capital and is therefore not recorded on the asset register or funded from capital resources.
Capital expenditure also includes qualifying grants and loans, such as those provided for the
enhancement of buildings to increase the extent to which they can be used by a disabled or
elderly person. Capital expenditure can be met from borrowing, capital receipts, grants or
revenue contributions.

10.3.

Due to the complex and large-scale nature of capital projects, the original budgets have to
be based on estimations that often need revising as the project advances. This in turn leads
to re-phasing of the capital programme, in order to keep the overall costs within the agreed
budget.
The Asset Management Plan

10.4.

By far the largest element of the council’s capital worth (as represented by the fixed asset
values on the balance sheet) is in its property holdings, with a total of £257 million showing
as the net book value of all property assets as at 31 March 2021 (after depreciation has
been applied). In line with Government and best practice guidelines, the council is required
to have prepared and published an Asset Management Plan (AMP) which outlines its
approach to its material asset holdings. This is to ensure that it acts responsibly in terms of
undertaking a stewardship role over valuable public assets whilst deriving the maximum use
from them in terms of service delivery so that value for money is able to be evidenced.

10.5.

The council’s Asset Management Plan outlines the principles, criteria and processes that
form the cornerstone of the capital programme. This requires a continuous assessment of
the relative value of an asset (both financial and non-financial) in order to ensure that the
council’s investment in its assets is working to optimum effect. This is especially important in
the current financial climate, where assets that are no longer viable or surplus to
requirements need to be disposed of in order to reduce the council’s liabilities and to
generate capital receipts to fund new developments or be transferred for community benefit.

Page 87

Agenda Item 6

The Capital Budget Strategy
10.6.

Although the Asset Management Plan is used to inform the contents of the capital budget, it
is only one element. In order to ensure that the capital budget is able to meet the council’s
needs in the wider sense and to manage the impact on the revenue budget, the
development and use of the capital programme is underpinned by a Capital Budget Strategy
as follows:
● To maintain an affordable four-year rolling capital programme.
● To ensure capital resources are aligned with the council’s strategic vision and
corporate priorities.
● To undertake prudential borrowing only where there are sufficient monies to meet in
full the implications of capital expenditure, both borrowing and running costs.
● To maximise available resources by actively seeking external funding and disposal
of surplus assets.
● To engage local residents in the allocation of capital resources where appropriate.

10.7.

Due to the limited availability of capital receipts and the need to contain the level of
borrowing undertaken to minimise the revenue impact, it has been necessary to review the
capital programme. This is to ensure sufficient funding is available for existing schemes that
have commenced and that any new projects are of the highest corporate priority and/or
reduce the pressure on the revenue account.

10.8.

Applications for capital bids have been reviewed by the Capital Team and scored against a
weighted matrix to ensure they focus on the council’s core priorities, benefit to the
community, environmental impact, health and safety requirements, the generation or
protection of income streams and affordability. The level of resources available raises a
number of issues and risks for future years, which need to be addressed. Over the past few
years the council has seen significant constraints in its available capital receipts. It is difficult
to estimate the funding level achievable, as a number of changes often arise to the asset
disposal programme once the consultation process has been completed. In the event that
sufficient disposals cannot be realised in 2022-23 onwards this will result in a need to reduce
or defer the capital programme or to borrow, thus increasing the revenue pressure on the
General Fund. Regular monitoring will need to be reported back to members and the capital
programme adjusted accordingly.

10.9.

There is limited scope for future investment in new assets or making improvements to
existing buildings. The Asset Management Plan is key in delivering resources to the capital
programme and rationalising the council’s asset and property portfolio. It is imperative that
limited resources do not damage the council’s ability to maintain its significant income
streams as assets deteriorate from lack of investment. It is likely that over the next four years
some difficult decisions will need to be made on some of the asset holdings. There are
limited capital resources to fund any overspends/new requirements which could occur during
the financial year. Any additional schemes during the financial year are likely to require an
existing scheme to be deferred or funds re-allocated unless there is a strong case to borrow.
Available Capital Funding

10.10.

Capital expenditure can be financed from revenue resources, grants, usable capital receipts
and borrowing. The General Fund can only be used to fund General Fund related capital

Page 88

Agenda Item 6
expenditure, and the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) can only finance expenditure on
HRA assets; there can be no cross subsidisation between accounts. In both cases, the
revenue resources are limited. A summary of the 2022-2026 capital resources utilised to
fund the Capital Programme is detailed in Annex 4, but shown graphically below.

The remaining 0.1% is funded from Revenue & Reserves

10.11.

Capital Grants – these are offered by external funders to assist with certain types of
expenditure. Capital grants include those from the Environment Agency and Lottery Fund.
The Better Care Fund allocation for 2022-23 is estimated to be at least in line with the
2021-22 allocation, £3.015m. Some £3m has been set aside to fund the Housing Assistance
Policy within the capital programme. This is made up of funding from the Better Care Fund
and recycled Regional Housing Board monies. The 2022-23 capital programme also
includes the Margate Town Deal, Ramsgate Future High Street Fund and projects to bolster
Thanet’s sea defences.

10.12.

Capital Receipts – When a fixed asset is sold, provided that the sale receipt is over £10k,
the income has to be treated as a “capital receipt”, which means that it can only be used to
fund capital expenditure. All of the monies received from the disposal of General Fund
assets are available to the council for use.

10.13.

Before the start of each financial year, a Flexible Use of Capital Receipts Strategy has been
prepared as part of the annual budget documents. This sets out the circumstances when the
council can capitalise expenditure that would normally be deemed as revenue. The Flexible
Use of Capital Receipts Strategy is set out in Annex 5 and details the criteria where this may
be considered as per guidance issued by Government. The Flexible Use of Capital Receipts
scheme ends on 31 March 2022.

Page 89

Agenda Item 6
10.14.

The level of capital receipts available from the sale of surplus assets has been very
constrained over the last few years. Reasons for this have included the economic situation,
assets being removed from the disposal list following consultation, and capital funding being
switched from reserves to capital receipts wherever possible due to significant pressures on
the council’s revenue budget. Members should note that an estimated £0.661m in capital
receipts has been forecast to fund the 2022-23 programme. This will be monitored closely
during the financial year, as it may be necessary to adjust the programme in-year depending
on asset disposal and funding outcomes.

10.15.

Every new capital project requires a funding source. This may be external grant funding, or
else funded from within the council’s own resources. A major source of funding the capital
programme for some years has been capital receipts. The policy has been to dispose of
some of the council’s assets to enable investment in other of the council’s assets. The
council needs to be sure that the assets that benefit from investment offer a return of some
sort; such as additional social value or an enhanced operational capability to deliver
better/more efficient services. Only in exceptional cases does the council consider funding a
capital project from borrowing, as this creates a long term liability that requires debt
repayments, the cost of which has to be funded from the same source as for service
delivery.

10.16.

Projects already agreed from previous years within the four year programme are:
● Housing Assistance Policy (including Disabled Facilities Grants),
● Vehicle & Equipment Replacement Programme,
● Property Enhancement Programme,
● End User Computing Refresh of Devices,
● IT Infrastructure,
● Stone Bay Sea Wall Work,
● Broadstairs Flood and Coast Protection Scheme,
● Ramsgate Port - Berth 1 Refurbishment,
● Financial Management System,
● Thanet District LED Lighting,
● Royal Harbour Multi-Storey Car Park Lift Replacement,
● Margate Town Deal, and
● Ramsgate Future High Street Fund.

10.17.

Capital bids for the forthcoming years have been reviewed and scored. Where projects
require prudential borrowing further details can be found within the attached Annex 4.

Page 90

Agenda Item 6
10.18.

Table 4: New Capital Projects
New Capital Project
Walpole Coping and Sea Wall 22-23
Ramsgate Port & Harbour Truck 22-23

Ramsgate East Pier Building Structural
Improvements 23-24
Ramsgate Harbour - Dock Office on
Eastern Crosswall 23-24
Ramsgate Port & Harbour - Plant &
Equipment (Vehicle Barrier, Marina
Access Gates & CCTV, Signal Light
Repeaters, Berth 2/3 Catwalk) 23-24
Ramsgate Port & Harbour - Additional
Self Storage Containers 22-23
Crematorium Memorial Garden 22-23

Crematorium Cloisters 22-23

Royal Harbour Multi-Storey Car Park
25-26
10.19.

Project Outline
Coast protection improvements to
Walpole sea wall and pool.
Replacement of truck for the continuing
effective operation of Ramsgate Port &
Harbour.
To enhance both the building’s useful life
and visual appearance, while reducing
future maintenance costs.
Replacing the existing office, which is at
the end of its useful life, and reducing
future maintenance costs.
Construction, replacement and
enhancement to ensure the continuing
effective operation of Ramsgate Port &
Harbour.
Extra containers to help meet excess
demand, benefiting both the community
and service provision.
Creation of a memorial garden for
cremated remains in an unused area at
Thanet Crematorium.
To refurbish and extend the cloisters at
Thanet Crematorium, providing an
improved structure and reducing future
maintenance costs.
To purchase this car park, of which the
council is currently the lessee.

The draft General Fund Capital Programme for 2022-23 is £18.710m, which will be funded in
the main from grants, usable capital receipts and prudential borrowing. This is shown in
summary format below.

Page 91

Agenda Item 6
Table 5: Draft Capital Programme 2022-2026
2022-23
£’000
Statutory and Mandatory Schemes

2023-24
£’000

2024-25
£’000

2025-26
£’000

3,000

3,000

3,000

3,000

365

0

0

0

Annual/Regular Enhancement
Programmes

1,518

814

1,089

749

Wholly/Part Externally Funded

13,537

5,755

2,060

600

215

501

0

3,000

75

75

75

75

18,710

10,145

6,224

7,424

681

314

314

314

16,934

8,755

5,060

3,600

0

0

0

0

1,095

1,076

850

3,510

Ongoing Schemes from Previous
Years

Construction, Replacement and
Enhancement
Capitalised Salaries (not yet allocated
to capital projects)
Total Capital Programme
Expenditure
Capital Resources
Used:
Capital Receipts and Reserves
Grants and Contributions
Contributions from Revenue
Prudential Borrowing

10.20.

11.
11.1.

Any slippage from the 2021-22 capital programme will be in addition to the numbers in the
above table. For example, the Budget Monitoring Report for the 18 November 2021 Cabinet
meeting gives an estimated 2021-22 General Fund capital programme underspend of
£5.731m.

Options
Council could choose not to approve some or all of the proposals presented in the report.
This could include the proposed budget growth or saving proposals, the Council Tax
increase or planned contributions to or from reserves. However, Members would also need
to identify alternative ways of bridging the budget gap, if the changes gave rise to a budget
shortfall.

Page 92

Agenda Item 6

Contact Officer: Chris Blundell (Director of Finance)
Reporting to: Madeline Homer (Chief Executive)
Annex List
Annex 1: Vacant Posts
Annex 2: Other Savings
Annex 3: General Fund Earmarked Reserves
Annex 4: General Fund Capital Programme 2022-23 to 2025-26
Annex 5: Flexible Use of Capital Receipts
Background Papers
Title: Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022-26, Cabinet 18 November 2021
Title: Fees and Charges 2022-23, Cabinet 18 November 2021
Corporate Consultation
Finance: Not applicable
Legal: Estelle Culligan (Director of Law and Democracy)

Page 93

This page is intentionally left blank

Annex 1
Savings from Vacancy Review

Service

Post

Budget
£'000

Additional Commentary

-100,000

Deletion of Deputy CX role, with £37k held back for a provision
to facilitate this, including potential backfilling at a lower grade
and/or job revaluation

0

-46,270

A reduction of the Public Protection Team from 4 FTE to 3 FTE.
The service has been operating effectively at this level post
service restructure in 2021.

-21,710

0

-21,710

-20,540

0

-20,540

Vacant since July 2020

Cecil Street Post/Print

-19,500

0

-19,500

Vacant since May 2018

Cecil Street Cleaning

-17,400

0

-17,400

Three posts, vacant from Nov 2020, Jan 2021 & Aug 2021

CMT

Deputy Chief Executive

Environmental Health

Environmental Health Officer
(Public Protection)

-46,270

Open Spaces Maintenance Team

Open Spaces Operative

Facilities Management

Corporate Property Surveyor

Facilities Management
Facilities Management

Cemetery

Adjustments Saving
£'000
£'000

Locking Up Attendant

-137,460

-10,310

37,460

2,000

-8,310

The post has been vacant for a number of years, and the
budget has been used to fund overtime by other staff covering
these duties. Recommended to retain a £2k budget to fund
fixed payments to existing staff covering locking-up duties and
remove the balance as a saving

CCTV

CCTV Operator

-8,170

0

-8,170

Vacant since August 2019. Deleting vacant post for 1 FTE.
This is the General Fund element only, as only 36% charged to
GF.

Depot

0.28 FTE Officer Cleaner

-6,030

0

-6,030

Currently funded within the base agency budget for a cleaner,
although this budget is at a lower level.

-287,390

39,460

-247,930

Total Savings

Agenda Item 6

Annex 1

Page 95

This page is intentionally left blank

Annex 2 - Budget Savings, Efficiencies and Income Adjustments

Service / Activity
Director of Property

Proposed
saving £

Decription

Kent Innovation Centre
Staffing

Reduced headcount 1 FTE. Resulting in one
-22,000 compulsary redundancy

Kent Innovation Centre
Rents
38-40 Grosvenor Place
Total
Director of Finance

-50,000 Based on a 3% increase
-13,400 Additional Rental Income, already agreed
-85,400

Service restructure
Area Enhance
Publicity/Promotion
Financial Services contingency

Financial Services various minor savings

None

Impact On Staff

Redundancy

Increase in charges for existing and future tenants None
None
None

Opportunities for more
Reduced service performance in the short-term as junior staff to be promoted
officers adapt to new roles and new ways of
as part of succession
working
planning

This is mainly due to the reduction in Housing
Benefit caseload, as more claimants switch to
universal credit. Consequently there is a
reduction in the amount of Housing Benefit
overpayments that are main due to fraud and
error and therefore amount set aside each
year to prudently reflect the expected level of
bad debt can also be reduced by a
-30,000 commensurate amount
None

None

None

None

None

Agenda Item 6

Budget realigned to this service as part of
-2,180 historic restructure
None
Release of departmental contingency budgets
accumulated from prior year savings that have
-11,740 been retained in the service.
None
Various budgets reduced in-line with prior year
spend, including:
Public transport
Equipment hire
-6,080 Shredding & scanning
None
It is possible to reduce the provision for bad
debt.

Annex 2

Page 97
Bad Debt Provision

Retirement of 3 senior officers/managers in
space of 18 months provides the opportunity
-20,000 to restructure the service

Impact On Customer

Insurance
Total
Director Of Communications

Saving from web
support/hosting which
has now moved to
Digital Transformation

Retending of our contract for insurance is
expected to lead to lower premiums. This is
due to the good work the council’s insurance
officer & health and safety officer have
undertaken in partnership with service
-30,000 managers to reduce the council’s risk profile
-100,000
The responsibility for web hosting and support
now sits within Digital Transformation so this
activity will be funded from within an existing
Digital budget The entire cost of the hosting
was going to remain in the Comms budget to
be used to fund other communications activity
but a contribution will be offered up to help
-5,000 achieve the 10% target.

Saving from Civica W2
contract
-22,000
Saving from
uncommitted annual
revenue budget
-17,000
Total
-44,000
Director Of Housing and Planning
Housing Strategy
Officer recharge 50% to
HRA
-22,100

None

No direct impact on staff,
other than placing more
This will mean a reduction in the overall residual
pressure on the team to
comms budget - the residual comms budget now
identify free solutions if
only mainly covers existing annual commitments. It there is any unplanned
means there is minimal funding to cover any
comms activity which
unplanned one/off activity in future years.
arises.
This saving would have been used to put back into
funding other digital projects
No direct impact on staff
This had been identified as contingency to cover
any increases in annual software costs in future
years and to fund any further activity
No direct impact on staff

Apportionment of 50% staffing cost to HRA to
deal with retrofit work

None

None

Increase in planning fee income budgets to
-75,000 bring in-line with forecast

None

None

Manager requested to go part-time delete
-23,870 vacant element of post

None, new post for HRA projects created in HRA

None

Increased capacity for casework, by redesigning
roles.

None

None

None

Revision of homeless
posts structure
-790
Increase recharge of
Director of Housing and
Planning to 50%
-11,240
Total
-133,000
Director of Law and Democracy

Not required
Increase recharge to HRA as a result of
additional workload of TLS service coming
back in house

Agenda Item 6

This will be the saving achieved by terminating
the Civica W2 contract
This is taken from the remaining amount
within the annual revenue budget which isn't
already earmarked

Annex 2

Page 98

Increase in Planning
Fee income
Reduction in
Programme Managers
hours

None

Dem Services conference fees

-250 Reduction in conference fees

None

None

Dem Services - Cllr
Travel fees

-500 Reduction in Cllr travel fees

None

None

Legal Services - Public
Transport

-500 Reduction in unused budget

None

None

Legal Services Stationary

-600 Reduction in unused budget

None

None

-500 Reduction in unused budget
-2,350

None

None

Charges have been increased as part of fees and
charges setting process, but this budget
adjustment is based on volume, so no direct
impact on customers

None

Legal Services Conference fees
Total
Director of Operations

Bulky Waste
Total

TOTAL SAVINGS

Additional Income based on service
-30,000 performance
-30,000

-394,750

Agenda Item 6

Annex 2

Page 99

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Annex 3
Annex 3 - Earmarked Reserves
Uncommitted

For the Year Ended 31 March

Committed

Total

Available for
Unavailable
unforeseen for unforeseen
circumstances circumstances
£000’s

Covid-19/Coronavirus

Total
31-Mar-21

£000’s

£000’s

-1,004 -

-1,004

Covid-Tax Income Guarantee Scheme

-

-757

-757

Covid Business Rate Reliefs - S31 Grant

-

-9,553

-9,553

-10,310

-11,314

Covid Reserves

-1,004

Thanet Lottery Reserve

-

-47

-47

Housing Intervention Reserve

-

-148

-148

-125

-126

EK Services Reserve

-1

Maritime Reserve

-

-

-

Business Rates Growth Reserve

-

-2,560

-2,560

Equalisation Reserve

-

-3,039

-3,039

Information Technology Reserve

-69

-207

-276

Non Ring-fenced Grants Reserve

-59

-174

-233

Gf Repairs Reserve

-

-308

-308

VAT Reserve

-

-53

-53

-419

-1,257

-1,676

-87

-29

-116

-52

-52

Capital Projects Reserve
Strategic Reserve
Slippage Fund Gf - Non Harbour

-

Waste Reserve

-12

-38

-50

Slippage Fund Gf - Harbour

-10

-31

-41

-499

-499

-1,343

-1,791

Crem/Cemeteries Works Reserve

-

Risk Management Reserve

-448

Decrim Reserve

-

-692

-692

Council Election Reserve

-

-39

-39

Homelessness Reserve

-

-330

-330

Priority Improvement Reserve

-

-20

-20

Local Plan (LDF)

-

-176

-176

Training Reserve

-

-95

-95

-5

-16

-21

Other Earmarked Reserves

-1,110

-11,278

-12,388

Total Earmarked Reverses

-2,114

-21,588

-23,702

Coastal Maintenance Reserve

Page 101

Agenda Item 6
Annex 3
The above reserves have been established under the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 to set
aside specific amounts for future policy purposes.
Covid-19 Reserves - this reserve holds funding to support the impact of the Coronavirus pandemic.
Covid-Tax Income Guarantee Scheme - A grant scheme to compensate local authorities for
councils for a proportion of irrecoverable council tax and business rate losses incurred during the
pandemic. These losses are charged from the collection fund to the general fund across a number of
years and this reserves balance can only be used to finance those charges.
Covid Business Rate Relief S31 Grant - businesses were provided a number of reliefs during the
pandemic. This resulted in a significant loss in income to the council and a section 31 grant was
provided by the government to compensate us. These losses are charged from the collection fund to
the general fund across a number of years and this reserves balance can only be used to finance
those charges.
Lottery Reserve – held to administer income and expenditure in relation to the Thanet Lottery.
Housing Intervention – to fund anticipated costs associated with the Authority's Intervention
East Kent Services – ring fenced for future investment within the services delivered by East Kent
Services
Maritime – to fund potential future works at the Port and Harbour and for income
protection/maximisation works.
Equalisation Reserve – to offset significant variations in benefit expenditure and subsidy and any
potential shortfall in business rates, as well as smoothing the volatility of these activities between
years.
Information Technology – to control and enhance the development of new Information Technology
initiatives with the objective of improving efficiency throughout the Council’s activities.
Unringfenced Grants – any under spend against unringfenced grant funding is set aside in this
earmarked reserve to be utilised in future years.
Repairs – to make provision for necessary essential repairs and maintenance and minor
improvements to the Council’s assets.
VAT - to cover any one off cost deemed appropriate such as the cost of specialist advice.
Capital Projects – revenue monies and other contributions set aside for capital projects.
Strategic – to help facilitate work around the strategic objectives of the council.
Slippage GF – to set aside sums at year end to meet ad hoc and specified liabilities on the General
Fund which, due to timing difficulties, cannot be spent until after the 31 March.
Waste - to replace vehicles, plant and equipment coming to the end of their useful lives. Service
underspends in relation to front line operational services are set aside to support the replacement
programme.

Page 102

Agenda Item 6
Annex 3
Slippage Harbour – to set aside sums at year end to meet ad hoc and specified liabilities on the Port
and Harbour which, due to timing difficulties, cannot be spent until after the 31 March.
Crematorium & Cemeteries Works – the Council has an obligation to be environmentally compliant.
The surcharge on both cremations and burials is set aside in this reserve to support cremator burner
replacement and works required at the cemeteries.
Risk Management – to meet potential increases in insurance premiums, fund excess costs,
self-insurance, TUPE obligations and any unforeseen one-off risk related expenditure.
Decriminalisation – the Council administers on-street parking on behalf of KCC and is required to
account for the income and expenditure separately. This reserve holds any unutilised revenues from
parking charges. These can only be used to fund future parking, transport or environmental
improvement related schemes.
Council Election – funds are contributed on an annual basis in order to fund the council elections,
which occur every four years.
Homelessness – To hold unspent homelessness grant and recovered rent deposit monies to draw
down on depending on the Economic Climate and homelessness projects.
Priority Improvement – for one-off projects and pump priming investment into service improvements.
Local Plan – due to the variable profile of spend on this activity and the variable cost in relation to
consultation and inspection, any under spend is set aside in this reserve to be drawn down as and
when required.
Training – due to the variable profile of spend on this activity and the variable cost of training, any
under spend is set aside in this reserve to be drawn against as and when required.
Coastal Maintenance – due to the variable profile of spend on this activity and the variable cost
involved with coastal infrastructure works, any in year under spend is set aside in this reserve to be
drawn against in future years.

Page 103

This page is intentionally left blank

Annex 4 - General Fund Capital Programme
Capital Programme £000

Capital Bid Score

Directorate

2022-23

2023-24

2024-25

2025-26

STATUTORY/MANDATORY
Housing Assistance Policy (incl Disabled Facilities Grants)

104

Corporate Resources

-

3,000- -

3,000- -

3,000- -

3,000-

Thanet District LED Lighting

107

Operational Services

-

315-

Royal Harbour Multi-Storey Car Park Lift Replacement

104

Operational Services

-

20-

Financial Management System

100

Corporate Resources

Vehicle & Equipment Replacement Programme

128

Operational Services

-

965- -

575- -

850- -

510-

Property Enhancement Programme

N/A

Corporate Governance

-

80- -

80- -

80- -

80-

End User Computing - Refresh of Devices

104

Corporate Resources

314

IT Infrastructure

108

Corporate Resources

159 -

159- -

159- -

159-

Stone Bay Sea Wall Work

121

Operational Services

-

Margate Town Deal (ongoing from 2021/22)

N/A

Corporate Governance

-

10,940- -

5,090- -

Ramsgate Future High Street Fund (ongoing from 2021/22)

N/A

Corporate Governance

-

1,242- -

215-

2,060- -

600-

Walpole Coping and Sea Wall

121

Operational Services

-

450-

Ramsgate Port & Harbour - Truck

100

Operational Services

-

25-

Broadstairs Flood and Coast Protection Scheme

112

Operational Services

-

880-

Ramsgate Port - Berth 1 Refurbishment

105

Operational Services

Ramsgate East Pier Building Structural Improvements

100

Operational Services

150

Ramsgate Harbour - Dock Office on Eastern Crosswall

100

Operational Services

25

Ramsgate Harbour - Vehicle Barrier

102

Operational Services

-

17-

Ramsgate Harbour - Marina Access Gates

100

Operational Services

-

25-

Ramsgate Harbour - Marina Access Gates CCTV

100

Operational Services

-

19-

Port Control Signal Light Repeaters for Ramsgate West Pier

100

Operational Services

-

15-

ONGOING SCHEMES FROM PREVIOUS YEARS

30

ANNUAL/REGULAR ENHANCEMENT PROGRAMMES

WHOLLY/PARTLY EXTERNALLY FUNDED
450-

CONSTRUCTION, REPLACEMENT & ENHANCEMENT
-

210-

Agenda Item 6

Annex 4

Page 105

Ramsgate Port - Berth 2/3 Catwalk

100

Operational Services

-

Ramsgae Port & Harbour - Additional Self Storage Containers

115

Operational Services

55

Crematorium Memorial Garden

118

Operational Services

60

Crematorium Cloisters

100

Operational Services

100

Royal Harbour Multi-Storey Car Park

111 Corporate Governance

-

Capitalised Salaries (not yet allocated to capital projects)
Total for the Year
General Fund Capital Programme Funded By

75

75

75

18,710

10,145

6,224

7,424

Total for the Year

2024-25

2025-26

314

314

314

20

0

0

0

16,934

8,755

5,060

3,600

0

0

0

0

1,095

1,076

850

3,510

18,710

10,145

6,224

7,424

Contributions from Revenue
Prudential Borrowing

2023-24

661

Reserves
Grants & Contributions

3,000-

75

2022-23

Capital Receipts

40-

Ramsgate Port & Harbour - vehicles, plant & machinery (10 yr MRP life)

-

13- -

3- -

Ramsgate Port & Harbour - berths & buildings (20 yr MRP life)

-

21- -

11- -

Thanet District LED Lighting (20 yr MRP life)

-

16- -

8- -

Crematorium Memorial Garden (50 yr MRP life)

-

1- -

Crematorium Cloisters (50 yr MRP life)

-

2- -

Royal Harbour Multi-Storey Car Park (50 yr MRP life)

-

60- -

Vehicle & Equipment Replacement Programme (6 yr MRP life)

-

417- -

63- -

565- -

Total

-

530- -

163- -

1,095- -

2022-23

2023-24

55- -

2024-25

Total
£000

2025-26

76- -

-

- -

-

- -

131-

425- -

-

- -

-

- -

425-

315-

-

315-

2- -

60-

-

60-

3- -

100-

-

100-

-

- -

75-

-

3,000- - 3,000-

575- -

850- -

510- - 2,500-

1,076- -

850- -

3,510- - 6,531-

Agenda Item 6

MRP Cost £000 pa Interest cost at 2.5%
- on Total
£000 pa - on Total

Annex 4

Page 106

Analysis of Prudential Borrowing

Agenda Item 6
Annex 5
Annex 5 - Flexible Use of Capital Receipts Strategy
1.0

Flexible Use of Capital Receipts

1.1

In March 2016 the government produced Statutory Guidance on the Flexible Use of
Capital Receipts. Proper accounting practices mean that capital receipts can only be
used to support capital expenditure. However, the purpose of the guidance is to give
flexibility as to the use of capital. In summary, the guidance allowed councils to use
capital receipts from the disposal of property, plant and equipment assets received in
the period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2019 to fund revenue spending which is forecast to
generate ongoing savings to an authority’s net service expenditure.

1.2

The above initiative has subsequently been extended by the government for a further
three years. Accordingly, capital receipts which have been received from 1 April 2016
to 31 March 2022 may now be used to fund revenue expenditure incurred during this
period which is forecast to generate ongoing savings to the council’s net service
expenditure.

1.3

The guidance itself gives examples of the type of expenditure that can be funded from
this source although it is not exhaustive. This includes:
●

Funding the cost of service reconfiguration, restructuring or rationalisation (staff
or non-staff), where this leads to ongoing efficiency savings or service
transformation.

●

Driving a digital approach to the delivery of more efficient public services and how
the public interacts with constituent authorities where possible.

A more comprehensive list is provided in section 2 - Guidance below.
1.4

This provided an opportunity for the council to invest in some significant projects during
this period to embed efficiencies for future years. As previously reported, capital
receipts have been or are being used to:
(a) fund in 2017-18 a Corporate Restructure that was conducted by the Chief
Executive, to reduce the establishment costs of the council, delivering long-term
savings. Subsequently there have been further service reconfigurations and
restructures to deliver long-term savings.
(b) deliver Digitally Enabled Services (to reduce costs and also improve customer
service).
Hence, the use of capital receipts will result in significant ongoing savings for the
council. Notification was duly given by the council to the Department for Communities
and Local Government (DCLG).

1.5

It was previously estimated that these projects would produce significant ongoing
savings, as set out below.

Page 107

Agenda Item 6
Annex 5

1.6

Project Name

Project Description

Corporate
Restructuring
and Service
Reconfiguration
Digitally
Enabled
Services

To review and update the
organisational structure and
service configuration to
deliver efficiencies
To adopt digital technology to
enable new ways of working

Estimated
Qualifying
Expenditure
£’000

Estimated
Annual
Savings
£’000

800

814

200

50

Expenditure on these two projects has been as follows:
Budget and Expenditure

Corporate
Restructuring
and Service
Reconfiguration
£’000

Digitally
Enabled
Services
£’000

Total £’000

Original Budget

800

200

1,000

2017-18 spend

(287)

(32)

(319)

2018-19 spend

(23)

(95)

(118)

2019-20 spend

(437)

(60)

(497)

2020-21 spend

(1)

(59)

(60)

2021-22 spend (estimated)

(52)

(114)

(166)

2019-20 budget transfer

0

60

60

2021-22 budget transfer

0

100

100

Total - estimated budget
remaining to the end of March
2022

0

0

0

1.7

The corporate restructuring and service reconfiguration as implemented continues to
deliver ongoing efficiencies throughout the organisation and this drive to deliver more
efficient ways of working will continue through the MTFS 2022-26.

1.8

The push for Digitally Enabled Services continues to deliver improvements in the way
that we manage our services. This is reflected through the delivery of ongoing savings
within the MTFS 2022-26.

1.9

Actual spend for the 2021-22 financial year will be reflected in a future update.

1.10

The following 2022-23 Treasury Management Strategy Statement Prudential Indicator
will be potentially impacted by the use of £166k of General Fund capital receipts:

Page 108

Agenda Item 6
Annex 5
Ratio of Financing Costs to Revenue Stream: The 2022-23, 2023-24 and
2024-25 General Fund ratios (to one decimal place) increase by 0.0%, 0.0%
and 0.0% respectively - i.e. the increase is less than 0.1% for all three years.
This is calculated on the assumption that the flexible use of capital receipts does not
increase the council’s revenue stream but does increase the council’s funding
requirement by £166k.
1.11

Council is recommended to consider and approve this revised Capital Receipts
Strategy.

2.0

Flexible Use of Capital Receipts – Guidance

2.1

To support local authorities deliver more efficient and sustainable services, under the
Local Government Act 2003 section 15(1) the government allows local authorities to
spend up to 100% of their capital receipts on the revenue costs of reform projects
(revenue reform costs) and issued revised guidance in March 2016 and subsequently.

2.2

Accordingly the council can treat as capital expenditure, any expenditure that is
designed to generate ongoing revenue savings in the delivery of public services
and/or transform service delivery to reduce costs and/or transform service delivery in
a way that reduces costs or demand for services for any of the public sector delivery
partners.

2.3

Revenue Reform Costs must be properly incurred by 31 March 2022 and can only be
met from capital receipts which have been received from 1 April 2016 to 31 March
2022. Revenue Reform Costs cannot be financed from (i) Right to Buy receipts, (ii)
pre 1 April 2016 capital receipts, and/or (iii) borrowing.

2.4

Revenue Reform Costs that generate ongoing savings may be funded from the
council’s capital receipts for the following:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

●
●

Sharing back-office and administrative services with one or more other council or
public sector bodies;
Investment in service reform feasibility work, e.g. setting up pilot schemes;
Collaboration between local authorities and central government departments to free
up land for economic use;
Funding the cost of service reconfiguration, restructuring or rationalisation (staff or
non-staff), where this leads to ongoing efficiency savings or service transformation;
Sharing Chief-executives, management teams or staffing structures;
Driving a digital approach to the delivery of more efficient public services and how the
public interacts with constituent authorities where possible;
Aggregating procurement on common goods and services where possible, either as
part of local arrangements or using Crown Commercial Services or regional
procurement hubs or Professional Buying Organisations;
Improving systems and processes to tackle fraud and corruption in line with the Local
Government Fraud and Corruption Strategy;
Setting up commercial or alternative delivery models to deliver services more
efficiently and bring in revenue; and

Page 109

Agenda Item 6
Annex 5
●

Integrating public facing services across two or more public sector bodies to generate
savings or to transform service delivery.

2.5

On a project by project basis details of the expected savings/service transformation
will be provided.

2.6

The impact on the council’s Prudential Indicators from Revenue Reform Costs being
treated as capital expenditure is:
●
●
●

2.7

Estimated and actual capital expenditure will increase by the amount of the Revenue
Reform Costs;
Balance Sheet resources (capital receipts) will decrease by the amount of the
Revenue Reform Costs;
The ratio of ‘financing costs to net revenue stream’ may increase or decrease
depending on whether the reduction in treasury interest income from the utilisation of
capital receipts is greater or less than any relevant revenue savings/enhancements
achieved from successful implementation of the reform project(s).
Effect
Utilisation of capital receipts to fund expenditure that would usually be funded from
revenue resources diverts the receipts available for re-investment in existing assets or
the creation of new ones.
The council is using capital receipts to fund the redundancy costs of the corporate
restructure and service reconfiguration, and the costs of digitally enabled services.

Page 110

